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Vision

Otsuka people creating new products for better health worldwidea.

Mission

s Ofsuka

To provide quality healthcare products while maintaining leadership position in chosen segments by working efficiently
towards customer satisfaction, rapid growth and enhanced stakeholders value.

Objectives

To retain its position of market leader in IV Solutions and clinical nutrition through
continuous education, new product launches and support to the medical profession
and community at large.

To offer world class quality products and support services to our customers at reasonable
prices through resource optimization.

To develop and retain efficient network of distributors and supplisrs for enhancement
of our present level of support services for customer satisfaction,

To provide equal opportunity for growth and development to all its team members to
build a highly motivated and committed team of professionals delivering waorld
class gquality products and services.

To contribute in community services for betterment of society and environment.

To generate adequate earnings for meeting current and future needs, leading to
enhancement of shareholder's value.

Focus

Medical
Profassion
&
Patients

Patients

Distributors
&
Suppllers

Empolyees

Community

Shareholders
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Motice is hereby given that the Thity fifin (35™) Annual General Mesting of Otsuka Pakestan Limited will be held on October 2,
2023 (Monday) at 10:30 am. al the Auditorium Hall, Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Chartered Accountants
Avenue. Clifton, Karachi as well as through Electronic means / Online meeting facility to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Torecelve, consider and adopl the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, together with
the Chairman Review, Directors” and Auditors’ repons theraon

2. To appoint statulory auditors and fix thedr remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2024,

3. To approve the final cash dividend of PKR 1.50 per ordinary share Le, 15% as recommended by the Board of Direclors for the
year ended June 30, 2023,

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To consider, adopt with or without modification the following resolution for approval of circulation of Company’s annual audited
accounts containing balance sheat, profit and loss statement, auditors’ and directars’ reports ete. CAnnual Audited Financial
Statements”) to mamber of the Company through GR enabled code and web link a5 part of notices of Annual General Masting,
"RESOLVED THAT providing of Company’s annual audited financial statements to its” mambers through QR enabled code and
web link be and 15 hereby approved”,

*FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized to discontinue the circulation of annual financial
statements through CO/OVD."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all acts. deeds and things, take or cause
to be taken any action as may be necessary, incidental or consequential to give affect to this resolution.”

5, To consider and approve the incremental remuneration of Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

6. To transact any othar business with the parmission af the Chair.

By order of the Board
Sajid Ali Khan
Company Secretary

Karachi: September 2, 2023

OMLINE PARTICIPATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The shareholdars of Otsuka Pakistan Limited are encouraged to participate in tha 35" Annual General Maating (AGM) through
elactronic means beside in persen as offered by the Company and get themselves registered with Company” Share Registrar La,
Mis, CDC Share Reglstrar Services Limited 2t least 48 hours before the meesting time of AGMW

The sharsholders will be able to login and participate in the 350 AGM proceedings through their smar phones or compuler
devices from their homes or any convenient location after completing all the formalities required for the verification and
identification of the sharsholders.

The login facility will be opened at 10:05 a.m. on October 2, 2023 enabling the participation o join the proceedings which will
start at 10:30 a.m. sharp, The shareholders are requested to provide the information as per the below format at
cdcsr@edesrsl.com OR WhalsApp al (321-8200864, The delails of the video link will be sent {o the shareholders on the email
address provided In the balow

5 Folio Number / Company Name of the CNIC # Coll # E-mail
Nao, CDC Account Shareholder Address
l # Slgn up | | 1
'[ I Otsuka Pakistan Lid, !

ghareholders may send their comments and suggestions relating to the proposed agenda items of the 35 AGM of the Company

least two working days before the AGM, at cdcsrifcdesrsl.com or  secretarialcompliance@otsuka.pk or WhatsApp or SMS-
on Caell No. 0321-8200864. Shamholders are reguired to mention their full name, CNIC number and FoliodCOC account number
for this purposa.

Shareholders will also be encouragsd o parlicipals In the 350 AGM 1 consalidale thalr allendance and participation through
proxies.
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Notes: -

A, BOOK CLOSURE & PROXIES APPOINTMENT
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Seplember 26, 2023 1o October 2, 2023 (bath days inclusive)
[or entitlerment of 15% Cash Dividend and for attending/voting at Annual General Meeating.

GOC Account Holders will have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in GCircular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000
izsued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

A mamber entitfed o attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint & proxy to attend and vote on hig | her behalf,
A prowy need not be a member of the company.

Motarally Certified Instrument of appointing proxy duly signed and stamped along with the power of aitorney or other authority
under which proxy is assigned must be submitted at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the
Meeting.

In case ol individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities ang in group account and their
registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement

The proxy form shall ba witnessad by two parsons whosa names, addresses and CHNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished wilh the proxy form,

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted (uniess
it has been provided earlier) along with prooy form to the Company.

Proxies attending meeting on behalf of members are also required to orovide below information for the purpese of attending the
meating through video link, Video link details and login credentials will be shared with praxy afisr verification:

Company Name MName of CNIC Number| Folio/ CDC No.|  Cell Number Email Address
Proxy

Otsuka Pakistan Lid.

B. FORATTENDING MEETING:
In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group account and their
registration details are uploaded as per the COC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her idenfity by showing his/her original
Computerized Mational [dentity Card {CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/powsr of attormesy wilh specimen signature of the nominees shall be
produced (unless it has been provided sadier) at the time of the mesting.

C. AVAILABILITY OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY'S WEBSITE:
The audited accaunts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 are placed on the Company's wabsite: www.otsuka.pk.

0. TRANSMISSION/CIRCULATION OF ANNMUAL REPORTS:
In pursuance of SECP SRD T87(1¥2014 dated September B, 2014, the shareholder who desire to receive annual reports in future
through amail instead of by past are advised to give their formal consent duly signed by the shareholder along with valid copy of
CHNIC, email address to the Company’s Share Registrar at the below mentioned address.

E. CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL REPORTS THROUGH DIGITAL STORAGE:
In pursuant to SECP notification SRO 470(1¥2016 dated 319 May, 2016, the shareholders of the Company had accorded their
consant for the transmission of Annual Reports through COVDVIVUSE instead of transmitting the hard copies. The shareholders
who wish to receive the hard copies may request to the Company Secretary / Share Registrar and the Company shall provide the
same within one week of such demand

F. CHNIC/NTN DETAILS ON ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND (MANDATORY REQUIREMENT):
According o the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's (SECP) SRO 831012012 dated July 05, 2012 read wilth
SRO 19(1) 2014 dated January 10, 2014 and other relevant rules, the electronic dividend should also bear the CNIG number of
the registered shareholder or the authorized person, except in the case of minors) and Corporate Shareholders,

As per Regulation No. 4 & 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividend ) Regulations, 2017, the Company shall be constrained to
withhold the payment of dividend to the shareholders, |n case of non-availability of identification number (CNIC or Mational Tax
Mumber) of the Shareholder or authorized person.

Accordingly, the shareholders, who have not yet submitted copy of their valid CNIC or NTH, are once again requested to
immediately submit the same to the Company's Share Registrar at the befow mentioned address. Corporate entities are requested
to provide their National Tax Mumber (NTMN) and Folio Number along with the authorized representative’s CNIC copy.

G. ZAKAT DECLARATION (CZ-50):
Zakal will be deducted from the dividends at source undesr the Zakat & Ushar Laws and will be deposited within the prescribed
perod within the relevant authonity. Any shareholder who wants to claim exemption should submit valid Zakal Declarations under
Fakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 & Rule 4 of Zekst (Deduction & Refund) Rules, 1981 an prescribed Form CZ-50 to the Share
Registrar of the Company by quoting the Company Nams and their respective Folio MumberCOC Account Mumbars.

0o
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H. WITHHOLDING TAX ON DIVIDENDS:
Pursuant to the provision of the Finance Act, 2023 effective July 1, 2023, the rates of withholding income tax on the amount of
dividend payment under Income Tax Crdinance, - 2001 have been revised as under:

Persons who are filer and whosae names are aiso appeanng on ATL - 15%
Persons who are nat filer or whose names are nol appaarning on ATL - 30%

Shareholders whao are filers are advised to make sure thet their names are entered into [stest Active Tax Fayers List (ATL)
provided on the website of FBR before the date of approval of Cash dividend, in any other case tax on their cash dividend wiil
be deducted at the rate of 30% instead of 15%.

Ag per the clarification issued by FER, withholding tax will ke determined separataly on "Persons names are appearing on
ATL arnot appearing on ATL" status of the princpal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding
proportions.,

If the share is not ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold  equal proportion of shares and the
deductionwill be made accordingly. Therefone, all shareholders who hold shares jointly are required to provide sharehoiding
proportions of principal shareholder and joint-holder(s) inrespect of shares held by themtothe Registrar and Share Transfer
Acent inwriting as follows:

Company | Folio/CDC Mo. of Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder(s)
Mame Account Mo, Shares held
Mame and Shareholding Mame and Shareholding
CNIC Mo. Proportion MNIC Mao. Proportion

I. PAYMEMT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY (MANDATORY REQUIREMENT]):
In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution of Dividend)
Regulafions, 2097, It is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend toits shareholder ONLY through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the antitled shareholder. Shareholders are reguested to provide the valid copy of
CHICIMNTH along with their bank mandate specifying Tite of Bank Account, Account Number, Intemational Bank Account Number
{IBAN), Bank's Name, Branch's Name, code and Address, Name of the Shareholder(s), Folie No. f CDE Account Neo., Mobile f
Landline Ma. o the Share Registrar of the Company al the below mentioned address.

In this respect, the Company had aiready sent letiers on July 06, 2021 fo the sharehclders for submission of their bank account
details for payment of Cash dividend to the shareholders whose bank account details are not updatad. In case of non-provision of
ahove-information the Company will have 1o wilhhold the cash dividend according 1o saction 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017,

J. CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES (WITH BOOKENTRY) INTO COC ACCOUNT:

The SECP, through its letter No. CSDVED/Misc.(2016-630-840 dated March 26, 2021, has advised all listed companies to adheare
to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the "Act”), which requires all companies to replace shares igsued in
physical farm to book-entry form within four years of the promulgation of the Act. Accordingly, all sharehofiders of the Company
having physical folios/share certificates are requested to convert their sharas from physical form into book-entry form at the earliest.
Shareholders may contact a PSX Member, CDC Participant, or CDC Investor Account Service Provider for assistance in opening
a GRS Account and subssquent conversion of the physical shares into book-entry Torm, Maintaining shares in book-antry form
has many advanlages like safe cuslody of shares with the CDC, avoidance of formalities required for the Issuance of duplicate
shares, and readily available for sale and purchase in an apen markel at befter rates. The Company had already sent lelters on
Juby 06, 2021 to the shareholders carrying physical shareholders for conversion of physical shares into book-entry form

K. UNPAID { UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND UNDELIVERD SHARE CERTIFICATE:
The Company has previously discharged its responsibility under Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017 whereby the Company
approached the shareholders to claim their unclaimed dividend(s) and undelivered share cedificates} in accordance with the law,

Shareholders, whose dividends still remain unclaimed andfor undeliverad share certificates are avallable with the Company are
hereby once again requestad to approach the Share Registrar or the Company o claim their outstanding dividend amaounts and/for
undelivered share cerificates as the same will be deposited with Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as per the
provision of Section 244(2) of Companies Act, 2017, as prescribed

L. VIDEO-LINK FACILITY TO MEMEERS:
In accordance with Section 132 and 134 of the Companies Act, 2017 if the Company recelves consent from members holding in
aggregsate 10% or more sharehoiding residing in 8 geographical lecation other than the city of the meating to participate in the
meeling threugh video conference, The Company will arrangs video conference facility in that lncation (city) subject to availability
of such facility in that city. To avail this facility a request is to be submitted at least 7 days prior to the date of Annual General
Meating to the Company Secretary by providing the following consent:




% Otsukao

 Limited

The Company will intimate to members regarding the venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of the
Annual General Meating along with complete information necessary to enabla them o access such facility,

M. E Polling on Special Business Resolutions:;

The members are hereby notified that pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regutations, 2018 ("the Regulations”) amended through
Matification dated December 05, 2022, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP®), SECP has directed
all the fisted companies to provide the right to vote through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members on all
busines=zes classified as special business.

Accordingly, mambers of Otsuka Pakistan Limitad (the "Company”) will be allowead to exercise their right to vote through electronic
voling facility or voting by post for the special business in ils forthcoming Annual General Maeting 1o be held on October 2, 2023
(Monday) at 10:30 a.m. In accordance with the reguirements and subject to the conditions contained in the aforesaid Regulations,

For the convenience of the Members, ballot paper is annexsd to this annual repor at last and the same is also avallable on the
Company's website at www.otsuka.pk for download.

Procedure for E-Voting:

I. Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those mambers of the Company who have their valid CNIC
numbers, cell numbers, and e-mall addresses available in the register of members of the Company by the close of business on
Septernber 26, 2023

Il. The web sddress, login detsils, and password. will be communicated to members via email. The security codes will be
communicated to members through SMS from the web portal of CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (being the e-voling senvice
provider},

M. |dentity of the Members intending to cast vole through e-voling shall be authenticated through electronic signature or
authentication for login,

. E-Voling lines will stant from September 27, 2023, 09:00 a.m. and shall close on October 01, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. Members can
cast thelr votes any time during this period. Once the vote an a resolution |s cast by a Member, he / she shall not be allowed to
change it subsequeantly.

Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot:

The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed baliol paper, along with copy of Computerized Mational Identity Card (CHIC),
should reach the Chairman of the meeting through past on the Company's registered address at 30-B, Sindhl Muslim Co-operative,
Housing Seciety, Karachi. Or amail at secretarialicomplance@olsuka.pk one day baefore the Annual General Masting on Qclober 01,
2023, The signature on the ballol paper shall mateh the signature on CHIC,

STATEMENT UNER SECTION 134(3) AND 140 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

AGENDA NO. 5

The current monthly remunsration for the Chisf Executive Officer of the Company s Hs, 1.572 million along with other beneafits as
per the Company policy. As per the clause 52 (3) of the Articles of Association of the Company, the shareholders are requestad to
authorize the Board of Directors to determine the remuneration level by increasing them with a maximum of 20% per annum for
another period of 3 years starting from March 01, 2024.

"RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors are authorized to determine the remuneration fevel of the CEOD of the Company by
increasing them with a maximum of 20% per annum for ancther period of 3 years starting from March 01, 2024 exclusive of
incentives, perguisites, retirement benefits and other non-monetary benefits to which he is entitted under his contract of senvice,
company policies and applicable service rules,”

Proxy, e-mandate and consent for video conferencing facility forms can be downloaded from our website: www.otsuka, pk

Shareholders having physical shares are requestad to promptly natify any change in their addresses i any’ In wriling 1o Company's
Share Registrar M/s, COC Share Registrar Services Limited, COC House, 99 — B, Block ‘B’, 5 M.C.H.5,, Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74400. Whereas, sharsholders having their sharss in COC accounts are requested to contacl ther respective COC
participant/investor Account Service.

For any query/problem/information, the investors may contact to the Share Registrar on the above-said contact details &for the
Company Secretary at the following contact details:

Ar. Sajid All Khan, Company Secratary, Otsuka Pakistan Limited, 30-B, 5 M.C H.5., Karachi-T4400, Tel: 34528652 — 4 Lines,
Email: secretarialcompliance@otsuka.pk.
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CHAIRMAN REVIEW

INTRODUCTION
It gives me the greal pleasure o present a review report as per the requiremenis of Seclfion 1592 of the Companies Act, 2017. | welcome
you at the 35th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of your Company and present my review on the perforrmnance of your Company for the year
ended June 30th 2023

GENERAL OVERVIEW

Thefinancial year of 2622-23 was a volalile, uncerain, complex and ambiguous year where the furbulent political conditions of the counfry
and adverse economic conditions have created negafive impact on the businesses. However, Olsuka Pakiztan Limited remained commit-
ted in terms of business confinuity and took pro-active measures to cope with these adverse siluations.

BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The economy of Pakisian iz at a critical juncture due to devastaled floods. massive devaluation of Pak Rupse. low foreign reserves, histon-
cally highesi infilalion and bank rates. Moreover, the overall business environment was nol conducive due o non-tanff import restrictions as
well a3 incessant rize in the power, gas and fusl rates.

During the year, the government has increased the general sales tax rates from 17% to 18% with immediale effect and aiso put pharmaceu-
fical sector under the category of reduced rate of 1% full and final Sales Tax on both purchase of pharmaceutical inputs as well as sales of
finished goods. The abovementioned taxafion measures resulted unforeseen increase in the cost of the products

Dezpite the abovementioned challenges, the Company has delivered a reasonable business performance and have completed the renova-
fion of its Line-ll project as well as commenced the produclion facility of the nutraceufical plant

FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE COMPANY

Your Company sales had posted a nominal growth rate of 6% particularly due to DRAP approved price increase with effect from Awgust 24,
2022 The Company gross profit margin have reduced from 32% to 21%. Due o the significant depreciation in Pak Rupee, the Company
has suffered the net exchange loss of Rs. 192 million against during the year. Further the finance cost has also increased from Re 6.6
million o 64.2 million with the rise in bank inferest rales as well as working capital loan. The Company have a net loss of Rs. 7.2 miillion
during the current financial year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors will be going to compiete their second year on Oclober 31, 2023, after being etected in the 33rd Annual General
Mesfing. The board comprises of professionalz with diverse background, sound business acumen and profound understanding of pharma-
ceufical industry. The Board and its associated Committees performed their dulies effectively and ensured all the statutory and regulatory
requiremenis applicable upon the Company

The overall periormance of the Board and each of its members was saltisfaciory based on an evaluation of all the integral-componenis,
which had a direct bearing on the Board's role in achievement of the Company's objeclives. | appreciate the valuable confributions made
by the directorz of the Company

ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company prioritizes the health, safety and wellbeing of s employees and people connected to it. Robust safefy measures were put in
place to ensure the health, wellbeing and hygiene of all siaff during the year. The Company remain focusad on ifs social, environmental and
ethical priorities and aspires {o achieve them in the best interest of all the stakeholders

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The pharmaceutical industry 1= already facing toughest time where several Companies has already raized concems about the discontinua-
fion of several products. Though the Company has already gel a price increase from DRAP effechive from June 9, 2023 which will improve
the profitability, however during the financial year 2023-24 the carstaker sei-up will take hold of the political leadership and then cammy out
the election in the Country. 1t will be assumed as the most precarious time where the surprize changes in the government policies could be
expecied.

We foresee the lackluster economic. activity -and the continuation of import curbs in order to save foreign reserves in the Country. The
Company is incessantly adapiing its business plan to cater the evolving realities and is hopeful to get some sort of relief from the govern-
ment after the commencement of new democratic sei-up Moreover, the Company iz optimistic to-increase its business by adding more
products in order to create synergy with the exisfing line of producks.

On behalf of the Board of Direciors of your Company, | would like to take this opportunily 1o acknowledge the devoled and sincere efiors
of our employees, business pariners and are thankful to our shareholders for their utmost trust which inspire us to remain steadfast in our
joumey,

%% ok

Mikio BANDO
Chaimman
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report of Otsuka Pakistan Limited {the Company) for the year ended
June 30, 2023.

This Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with Section 227 of the Companles Act, 2017 and Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019. This report will be submitted to the members at the
thirty fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 2, 2023.

Industry Overview

According to global pharma research company - IQVIA (previously known as IMS) published data, pharmaceutical
industry in Pakistan is currently estimated at Rs. 725 billion with an annual growth rate of 12.82% per annum. There
are lot of opportunities for local as well export of Pakistan origin products due to its geographical location.

Business Review

The ongoing political upheaval coupled with an adverse economic conditions due to inconsistent monetary / fiscal
policies, depreciation of Pak Rupee and record breaking inflation levels has compromised the profitabllity of the
Company.

The Company had achieved the minor growth of 6% in sales. The increase in sales is primarily attribulable to the price
increase and rationalization of discount given to the customers. Further the Company had launched the "ORTie"
sachet (ORS) with a very positive feedback from the market. However, the medical devices segment is still under
pressure due to supply chain disruptions on account of gas supply shortages around Europe in the wake of Russia-
Ukraine war,

The Company cost of sales had increased by 24% which had resulled in reduction of gross profit margins from 32% to
21% during the year. This increase is particulady due to the increase in raw [ packing material prices in line with
depreciation of Pak Rupee and the increase in the prices of fuel, electricity and gas charges.

Selling and distribution expenses were kept under control with trivial increase of 3%. Moreover, the Administrative
expenses were lightly controlled and reduced by 10% from last year. Other income of the company had shown a
notable increase of 87% due to the massive gain of Rs. 21.9 million on disposal of fixed assets machine and reversal
of impairment foss of Rs. 19.5 million on Orthopedic Knee Implants / Kits. Maoreover, the scrap sales and |ate payment
charges from hospital supply corporation have also increased by 41% and 235% respectively.

Other expenses have gone up by 68% particularly due to the net exchange loss of Rs. 192 million as compared to the
net exchange loss of Rs. 75 million during the last year while there is no expense recorded for worker's welfare fund,
worker's profit participation fund and Central Research Fund due to net loss after taxation during the year. The financa
cost of the Company wilnessed an enormous increase of B64% due lo the increase in bank mark-up rate from 12.25%
to 22% during the year. Further the Company had ulilized its working capital for renovation of Line-ll facility which had
increase the working capital requirements of the Company.

Financial Results

2023 | | 2022 |
m=msmmemmmmanns (PKR in "000) =s=emmmemaeee
(Loss)/Profit for tha year bafore taxation (28,352) 364,629
Taxation — net 21,145 (132,832)
(Loss)/Profit for the year after taxation (7.207) 231,797
Other comprehensive income/{loss) -net 9,886 {1,630)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,679 230,167
Accumulated profit brought forward 591,994 379,977
Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2022/2021 (18.150) (18.150)
Accumulated profits carried forward 576,523 591,994
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Appropriations

The Company had a loss after tax of Rs, 7.2 million and the board is delighted to propose 15% dividend (Rs. 1.50 per
share) for the year ended June 30, 2023, subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
{AGM) to be held on October 2nd, 2023.

Earnings Per Share

The lossfearnings per share for the year ended June 30, 2023 works out to be Rs. (0.60) (2022: Rs. 19.16).
Key operating and financial data

Key operating and financial data of last six years is annexed with this annual report.

Value of investments of provident and gratuity funds
The value of investments in bank deposits, government and money market securities based on the latest respective
audited accounts are given below:

Provident Fund Rs. 212,254 996/-
Gratuily Fund Rs. 121,064,544/-
Corporate Governance

As reqguired under Corporate Governanca, the Direclors are pleased to confirm that;

3. the financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

b. proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained,

o, appropriate accounting policies have been consistenily applied in the preparation of the financial statemeants
and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation
of financial statements and any departures therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained;

e. the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and manitored;

f.  there are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern;

g. there has been no material departure from the besl practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the
listing regulations;

h. In accordance with the criteria specified in Code, one director has a certification under Directors' Training
Program. All the Directors on the Board are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as Directors
of corporate bodies; and

i. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges outstanding as on June 30,
2023 except for those already disclosed in the financial statements.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors as required under section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 had fixed the number of Directors
have been elected at seven (7) including two (2) independent directors who will represent the minority shareholders of
the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations 2019, for a period of three years commenced from November 01, 2021.

The composition of Board of Directors (“the Board") is as follows:

CATEGORY MNAMES GENDER
Executive Director Mr. Hanif Sattar (CEQ) Male
“Non-Executive Directors | Mr. Mikio Bando {Chairman)® '

Mr. Mehtabuddin Feroz
Mr. Koichi Okada

Mr. Suhari Mukti*™
Independent Directors Mr. Abid Hussain

Mrs. Navin Salim Merchant Female

* Mr. Taufig Feroz is the alternate director of Mr. Mikio Bandao,

“*Mr. Sajid Ali khan is the alternate director of Mr. Suhari Mukti.
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Board Sub-Committees

NAME OF BOARD SUB- MAME OF MEMBER
COMMITTEE
Audit Committes Mr. Abid Hussain (Chairman)
Mr. Koichl Okada
Mr. Mehtabuddin Feroz
Human Resource Mrs. Navin Salim Merchant {Chairperson)
Remuneration & Momination Mr. Koichi Okada
Committee Mr. Mehtabuddin Feroz
Mr. Hanif Sattar (Secretary)
Risk Management Committea Mr. Abid Hussain (Chairman)
Mr. Hanif Sattar
Mr. Koichi Okada
Mr. Sajid Ali Khan (Secretary)

Directors' Remuneration

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of its Directors in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017. Currently, the
two independent directors and a non-working alternate director are getting fixed fees for attending the board meetings.
The aggregate amount of remuneration paid to each director of the Company during the year is given below:

CATEGORY NAMES NATURE OF AMOUNT
REMUNERATION (Rs. In *000)
Executive Director Mr. Hanif Sattar (CEO) Salaries-and benefits* 20,983
Mon-Executive Directors | Mr. Mikio Bando (Chairman) | Mot applicable NIL
hr. Mehtabuddin Feroz Consultancy fees 3,888
_Mr. Koichi Ckada | Mot applicable NIL
Mr. Suhari Mukti** Mot applicable NIL
Independent Directors Mr. Abid Hussain Meeting Feas 160
Mrs. Mavin Salim Merchant Meeting fees 160
* CEOQ is entitled to full time working salaries and company benefits as recommended by the board
of directors which was duly approved by the shareholders of the Company.
** Meeting fees of Rs. 80,000 paid to Mr. Taufig Feroz for altending meeting as an alternate director
of Mr, Suhari Mukti.

Risk Management

The Risk Management Infrastructure of the Company is based upon Enterprise Risk Management framework
addressing the major risk categories including Strategic, Operational, Compliance and Financial Reporting Risks.
Adequate controls have been designed and communicated to the stafl via polices and procedural guidelines. The
board has outsourced the internal audit function to evaluate and oversee the design and operating effectiveness of
these controls.

The board has made the risk management committee comprising of the following members

NAME DESIGNATION

Mr. Abid Hussain Indepandent Director

Mr. Kaichi Okada MNon-Executive Director

Mr. Hanil Sattar Executive Director & Chief Execulive Officer
Mr. Sajid Ali Khan Diractor Finance & Sacretary
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Pattern of Shareholding
The Pattern of sharehalding of the Company as at June 30, 2023 is annexed with this annual report.

Trading in shares by directors, executives and their spouses and minor children
During the year no trading in shares were reported by directors, executives and their spouses and minor children,

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company considers social, environmental and ethical matters in the context of the overall business environment
and has paid monetary as well as non-monetary donations in the form of medicines to different institutions as part of
its corporate social responsibility. The Company is committed to work in the best interest of all the stakeholders, in
particular the community in which we live and forms our customer base.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Control

The Company has an adequate internal financial controls system in place and the same was operating effectively
during the year ended June 30, 2023, The Company's Directors provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of operating, reporting and compliance objectives are the means by which:

« Company's full operations are conducted in accordance with prescribed policies and procedures,
= The Company is in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
*  The Company's assets and information are protected from any improper use.

Helding Company

The Company is an indirect subsidiary of Messrs Olsuka Pharmaceutical Company Limited, which is incorporated in
Japan.

Subsequent avents
There are no other material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken place
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

Description of principal risks & uncertainties
We expect no principal rigsks & unceriainties as at the closing period of June 30, 2023,

Changes occurring in the nature of business
We expect and plan to launch new products in near future nevertheless our main nature of business will remain
unchanged,

Future outlook

There is severe price war in IV Solutions market due to cut throat competition in order to gain the market share
however, your company is continuously readjusting its strategies to enhance its market share on the basis of product's
guality and good service, Further the Campany has planned for the diversification of its product lines with a focus on
the Clinical Nutrition & Nutraceutical products.

The Company is alga planning to make investments under good manufacturing pracess (GMP) for improavemeant in the

guality of its Ampoules production area {(Line-lll). We are confident on the performance of new and existing products
of the Company and will make necessary efforts to continue its growth,
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Main trends/ developments likely to affect future performance

The current political and economic conditions in the country is not conducive for the pharmaceutical industry where
the caretaker government set-up will take charge of the Country and there will be prevalent focus on the general
elections. We foresee a very economic activity during this period till the new democratic set-up will take control.
Further, the expected increase in minimum wages, fuel and utilities prices will further increase the operating cost of
the Company. Moreover, the depleting foreign reserves of the Country will force banks curb import through non-tariff
restrictions which may create distortion in the production activities of the Company.

In the forthcoming year, the Company will be facing extraordinary increase in the cost of raw, packing and other
ancillary materials. Further the central bank interest rale and lhe inflation levels will also increase the utilities, labor,
transportation and finance cost of the Company. We also foresee the exchange losses due to abnormal depreciation
of Pak Rupee In the upcoming year as well. Despite all the adds, the Company Is fully committed to achieve its goals
by adding more value added products in its product line.

Loans & Lease Obligations

The Company has obfained State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Rozgar Scheme Loan under COVID-19 scheme of Rs.
67.40 million at interest rate of 3% in October 2020, This loan has o be repaid in eight equal guarlerly installments,
The Company has already paid all the installments as of June 30, 2023.

The Company had undertaken lease obligations of four cars given to its employees for a five-year lease term, This
was done to reduce fts working capital requirements of the Company. The cumulative lease obligations are 8.060
million,

During the year, the Company had deferred the repayment of the loan taken from M/s. Otsuka Pharmaceutical Factory,
Inc., Japan (related party) which represents a foreign currency denominated loan. Both the tranches were roll forward
for another year. The current loan payable position is given below: -

Initial Date of Draw down Lna?Ja;f\:i}uum Lua?PI;'(aRy}ahla Latest ggf:yment
26-Feb-15 125,000,000 249,037,500 25-Feb-24
27-Apr-15 125,000,000 240,037 500 2B-Apr-24

Total 250,000,000 498,075,000

The Company intends to repay above-said two tranches after considering the central bank borrowing rates and
internal cash flow of the Campany.
Auditors

The present auditors, Messrs. Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants retire at the conclusion of the 35™ Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Based on the suggestion of the Audit Commitlee, the Board of Directors has recommended to the shareholders for the
appointment of Messrs. Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants (Independent Correspondent Firm to Deloitte Touché
Tohmatsu Limited) as the external auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2024.

Acknowledgement

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for the untiring efforts of all its employees in taking the Company
forward.,

2m pehalf of the Board

—r/#@fﬂjﬂ,f\ ; G
A ancene Pitarodaats

Hanif Sattar Mavin Merchant
Chief Execufive Office Director

Karachi
Dated; August 24, 2023
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNAMCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

MName of Company: Otsuka Pakistan Limited

Year ended: June 30, 2023

The Company, has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The talal number of directors are 7 (seven) as per the following:

a) Male: & (six)
b}  Female: 1 (one)

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:
Category Names
Independent directors™ Mr. Abid Hussain
Mrs. Navin Salim Merchant
Mon-executive directors Mr. Mikio Bando - Chairman

Mr, Mehtabuddin Feroz

Mr. Kaoichi Okada

Mr. Suhari Mukti

Executive director Mr. Hanif Sattar - Chief Executive Office

* The requirement of Independent Directars is at least two or one-third of members of the Board whichever is higher,
iwo independent directors were appainted / elected on the Company's Board and the fraction of 0.33 was not
rounded up as one since the Board considers that the two Independent Directors have adequately protected the
interests of the minorily shareholders,

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this Company,;

g, The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with their date
of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2017, and these
Regulations;

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chalrman and, in his absence, by a director elected by

the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Companies Act 2017 and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Companies Act 2017 and these Regulations;

9. The following directors have acquired the prescribed Directors' Training Program (DTP) cerdification:

a. Ms. Navin Salim Merchant

Two dgirectors are exempt from Directors Training Program as they have the requisite education and

axpearienca.
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10.

11

12

13.

14.

18.

1B.

117.

18.

19.

% Otsukao

There was no fresh appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFQ), Company Secretary (C3) and Head of Internal
Audit (HOIA) during the year ended June 30, 2023, The Board has approved appeointment of CFO, CS and
HOIA, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer had duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of the board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee:

Mr. Abid Hussain Chairman
Mr. Koichi Okada Member
Mr. Mehtabuddin Feroz Member

b) Human Resource Remuneration & Nomination Committee!
Mrs. Navin Salim Merchant Chairperson
Mr. Koichi Okada Member
Mr. Mehtabuddin Feroz Member
hr. Hanif Sattar Member

c) Risk Management Committee:
Mr. Abid Hussain Chairman
Mr. Koichi Okada Member
Mr. Hanif Sattar Member
Mr. Sajid Ali Khan Secretary

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

The frequency of meelings of the commillees were as per the following:

a!  Audit Committee: Quarterly
b}  Human Resource Remuneration & Nomination Committee: Yearly
c)  Risk Management Committee: As and when needed

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. Saud Tarig & Co. Chartered Accountants, who
considered suitably gualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
CQuality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are nol a close relative (spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal
audit, company secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
aexcept in accordance with the Act, thesa regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with; and

All the directors of the Company had attended the Annual General Mesting.
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20. Explanation for non-compliance with requiremeants, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:
3. No. | Non-Mandatory Requirement Req Explanation
Mo,
1. | Directors’ Training 14
Program (DTP)
It is encouraged that by June Currently ong director has aftained DOTP
30, 2022 all the directors on certification and two directors qualify for
their Boards have acquired exemption. The Company is encouraging and
the prescribed certification planning to arrange DTP cerification for the
under any director training remaining diractors.
program offered by
institutions, local or foraign,
that meet the criteria
specified by the Commission
and approved by it
For and behalf of the board

M

Hanif Sattar
Chief Executive Officer

ARGy

Mikio Bando
Chairman
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Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel +92 (0) 21 3454 6494-7
Fax:+92 (0) 21- 3454 1314
www yousufadid.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF OTSUKA PAKISTAN LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies {Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Otsuka Pakistan Limited (the Company) for
the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements
of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the Company's personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required 1o obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal cantrols, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recammendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions, We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us 1o believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compllance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023,

NMeu Ly :
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: September 07, 2023
UDIN: CR202310091RdFMaClew

Indmpendant Carespancent Fim o
Delnitte Towsha Tehmatsu Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT www yousufadd.com

TO THE MEMBERS OF OTSUKA PAKISTAN LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Otsuka Pakistan Limited (the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
incorne, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that
we have obtalned all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for
the purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial
position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reparting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017, in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2023 and
of the loss, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethies
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled aur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters.

5. No. Key audit matter How the matler was addressed in our audit
T Valuation of stock-in-trade

(Refer notes 4 4 and 10 to the Campany’s financial Our audit procadures in relation to valuation of
statements) stock-in-trade, amongst others, include the following: ©
As at June 30, 2023, the Company held stock-in- « Obtained an understanding of policies and '
trade of Rs, 1,063.97 million, which is 46.48% of total procedures followed by the Company with respect
assets and is net of provision for slow maving, 1o valuation of stock-in-trade and evaluated the
obzolete and damaged stock of Re, 35.90 million. design and implementation of controls;

irdejmfdand Carrespanoent Fm jo
Dalodte Touche Tohmatsy Limited



+ YOUSUF ADIL

Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants

8. Na.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We focused on stock-in-trade ag it is a significant
portion of Company’s total assets and it requires
management judgement with respect 1o
determination of net realizable value and
obsolescence of stock.

= Assessed appropriateness of the Company's
accounting policies for valuation of stock-in-trade
and compliance of those policies with accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan,

« 0On a sample basis, verified supporting documents
for purchases of stock-in-trade and the production
costs

= Tested on a sample basis, management's
assessment of the net realizable value of stock-in-
trade by comparing to its subsequent sales prices;

« Tested provision recorded for obsolete stock-in-
trade to ensure that whether it was as per the
policy of the Company, and

» Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of
the related disclosures in the financlal staterments
for compliance with the requirements of the
applicable financial reparting framewark,

Revenue recognition

(Refer notes 4.12 and 25 to the Company's financial
statements)

The Company's revenue is primarily generated from
sales of pharmaceutical products, The Company

recognisad revenue of Rs. 3,035.085 million from the

sale of goods to customers during the year.

Revenue recognition includes determination of sales
prices In accordance with the regulated price regime
of the Government and transfer of control of
products sold to customers. Further, discounts and
claims in respect of revenue recognised are provided
10 cusiomers.

Taking into account that revenue recognition is a key
performance indicator for the Company and higher
risk area, we considered this as a key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue
recognition, amongst others, include the following:

» Obtained an understanding of determination of
sales prices in accordance with polices of Drug
Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP);

+ Tested on sample basis selling prices of regulated
pharmaceutical products to ensure compllance
with DRAP pricing policies,

« Obtained an understanding of and testing the
design and effectiveness of controls designed to
ensure that revenue is recognised in the
appropriate accounting period as per the contract
terms with the customers;

» Checked the discounts and claims afferad by the
Company to its customers on sample basis;

* Inspected contracts on sample basis 1o obtaln an
understanding of contract terms particularly
relating to timing and the customer's acceptance
of the products and assessing the Company's
accounting policies for recognition of revenue with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

« Tested on sample basis, specific revenuea

transactions recorded before and after the
reporting date with underlying documentation,
including the customer's acknowledgement of
acceptance 10 assess whether revenue had been
recognised in the appropriate perioad; and

+ Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of
the related disclosures in the financial statements
for compliance with the requirements of the
applicable financial reperting framework,

Indepengen Correupancent Firm o
Debodite Touche Tohmates Limitad
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Information Other than the Finaneial Statements and Auditor's Report Therean

Management is responsible for the other infarmation. The other informatlon comprises the infarmation included in the
annual report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's repart thereon.

Our epinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion therson

In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated_ If, based on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Respongsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal contral as management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidzte the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinlon. Reasonable
assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audlt. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
i5 higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's Internal control

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based an the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
axists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinien. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial staternents represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We cornmunicate with the board of directors regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We alsa provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial staterments of the current period and are therefare the key audit matters, We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or whan, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
al  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2007 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehansive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up
in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

el investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980), was deducted by the Company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Nadeemn Yousuf Adil,

\dan :‘.t_qh& e

Chartered Accoun

Place: Karachi
Date; September 07, 2023
UDIN: AR202310091r123BySfa

Lrsepsintent Car-pspancent Firm ta
Dedeitie Touche Tohmatsy Limited
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

2023 e
Note —-e-seee-e- Rupees in *000 -—------- -
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 413,481 70,910
intang ible assals ] 1,092 1878
Long-term loans T 7426 8,186
Long-term deposits 36M 2338
Deferred tax asset - nat 8 115,636 80,700
541,326 364,007
Current assets
Stores and spares g 50,315 40,852
Stock-in-trade 10 1,063,968 928446
Trade debis 11 IT9.6TT 216177
Loans and advances 12 65,379 118,152
Trade daposits, short-term prepavmeants and other receivables 13 23,283 29,232
Sales tax refundable 14 90,263 &7 831
Advance tax- net 54,315 -
Short-term inestment 15 14,610 -
Barik baiances 16 5,828 53.211
1,747,638 1,481,901
Total assets 2,288,964 1,645.508
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 17 121,000 121,000
Rewenue reserves 576,523 581,954
Total equity 897,523 712,994
LIABILITIES
Mon-current liabilities
Long-term finance 18 - -
Defarred government grant - -
Lease liability 19 6,792 3,082
6,792 3,02
Current liabilities
Short-term loan from a related party 20 498,075 | 376,150
Trade and other payables bl 609,556 H19.922
Currant portion of long-term finance 13 - 24661
Current portion of deferred government grant - 612
Current portion of lease liability 13 1,268 534
Unclalimed dividand 1,765 1,588
Shart-term running firance 22 451,183 95,082
Provdsion for tasation - net - 9,068
M ark-up accrusad 23 22,802 1,223
1,584,649 1.128822
Total equityand liabilities 2,288,964 1,845,908
Contingencles and Commitments 24
The annesed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statemeants, r,”f ﬂ‘“{.w
P t
,.r"f?‘g' e TI ("'..-""IMA-..-...-c- :‘j.:}.t_'.-?r.r".'.rrf.- k!
Hanif Sattar MNavin Merchant Sajid Ali Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chiaf Financial Officer

34
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Sales-net
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and distibution expenses
Administrative and general expenses
(Provision} ! reversal of provision against doubtful trade debts

Other income

Other expenses

Operating profit

Finance cost

(Loss) [ profit before taxation

Taxation - net

(Loss) / profit for the year

(Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted

s Ofsuka

2023 2022

Note Rupees in ‘000

25 3,035,085 2,851,733
26 (2,391,174) (1,925,157)

643,911 926,576

27 (359,266)  (348,173)
28 (127,233)  (141,853)
11.1.1 (11,724) 6,097
145,688 442,647

29 101,874 54,535
247,562 497,182

30 (211,691)  (125,888)
35,871 371,294

a1 (64,223) (6,665)
(28,352) 364,629

3z 21,145 (132.832)

(7,207) 231,797

Rupees

33 (0.60) 19.18

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

...:“'-r?-g-ﬁi-‘-ﬁ*fl ("'..-""IMA-..-...-c- :‘j.:}.t_'.-?r.r".'.rrf.-
Hanif Sattar MNavin Merchant
Chief Executive Officer Director

35
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Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Mote -—- Rupees in 000 ---

(Loss) / profit for the year {7.207) 231,797
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Components of comprehensive income reflected in equity

Remeasurament gain / (loss) on defined banafil plan 36.1.4| 13,924 (2,2596)
Tax on remeasurement of defined benefit plan B.1 | (4,038) 666

9,886  (1,630)

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,679 230,167

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral parl of these financial statements.

Fa “\{ .
7
i
.--=“'-ﬁr':-'i_i:?n-':5-'-?..I Atsies Frlenrdaint %
Hanif Sattar Navin Merchant Sajid Ali Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Balance as at July01, 2021

Praiit for the year ended June 30, 2022

Other comprehensive income for the year
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan

Taxon remeasurement of defined
benafit plan

Total comprehensive income for the year
Final dividend for the vear ended
June 30, 2021 @ Rs.1.50 per share

Balance as at June 30, 2022
Loss for the year ended June 30, 2023

Other comprehensive income for the year

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan

Tax on remeasursment of
defined benefit plan

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to general reserve

Final dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2022 @ Rs.1.50 per share

Balance as at June 30, 2023

s Ofsuka

The anreed noles from 1 bo 48 form aninegral parl of these irancal stEtemeants.

.‘”"f?‘g' 1:-_.-4’-"5"*?
Hanif Sattar
Chief Executive Officer

ssued, Revenue reserves
subscribed
and pald-up Ganeral I.Inapprupfrlmul Sub-total Total equity
reserve profit
capital
Rupees in "000
121,000 341,980 Jr.oa7 IILTT S00.87T
- - 3,797 23,797 Z.var
- - [2,205) {2.296) [2.296)
- - G645 GGE BiG
- - (1,630} {1,630 (1.630)
= - ZA0 16T 230,167 23067
- - {18,160} [ 18,150) {18,150)
121,000 341,980 250,014 591,994 712,994
& = (7,207} {7.207) (7,207)
i = 13,924 13,924 13,924
- = (4,038) (4,038) (4,038)
= - 0,886 9,586 8,886
= - 2579 ZETS A
- 150,000 (150,000) - ?
- - (18,150) (18,150) (18,150)
121,000 491,980 84,543 576,523 697,523
i =
A
: t
/“..-"'IMA-..-...-c- J‘i.f.l'.t_'.-er..-'.'..rrf.' %
MNavin Merchant S»ajid Ali Khan

Director

D

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Note —- Rupees in ‘000 -----

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Zash generated from operations a8 24613 120,463

Taxes paid - net (81,213)  (51,937)
Intarest paid (40,249) (4,620)
Long-term deposits - net (1,356) (998)
Long-term loans - net 760 (603}
Workers Profit Participation Fund paid {20,407) (25,881)
Compensated absences paid (4,753) i1,844)
Paid to staff retirement benefit fund (6,459) (11,950)
Net cash flows (used in) / generated from operating activities (129,066) 22,630

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to propetty, plant and equipment (247,282) || (61,680)
Purchase of intangible asset - (1.288)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 34,084 16,183

Net cash flows used in investing activities (213,198) (46 7B5)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (17,974) (19.747)
Repayment of long-term finance 18 (25.473) (26.720)
Payment of lease liabilities 19.3 (2,183) (16,733)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (45,630) (63.200)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (387.894) (87.355)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (42,851) 44 504

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 34 (430,745) (42,851)

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Fa “‘x{ .
/ )
i
...:“"-r?-g-ﬁi-‘-ﬁ*fl ("'..-""IMA-.....-c- ;‘j.:}.t_'.-jf.'.rrf.- !
Hanif Sattar Navin Merchant Sajid Ali Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1.

1.1

21

22

23

24

241

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Otsuka Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public imited company and is listed on
the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company Is situated at 30-B, SMCH,
Society, Karachi in the province of Sindh, Pakistan. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing, marketing
and distribution of intravencus infusions and trading in pharmaceutical products nutritional foods and medical
equipmeant.

The Company is an indirect subsidiary of Otsuka Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Japan.
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

Statement of compliance

Thesa financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

. Intermational Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRS  Standards) issued by the [International Accounting
Standards Board (|ASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

. Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that obligations in
respect of cerlain siaff retirement benefits are camed at present value of defined benefit obligation less Tair

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured wsing the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency,

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS [ AMENDMENTS AND IFRS INTERPRETATIONS

Amendments to accounting standards that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023

The following amendmeants are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023. These amendments are either not
relevant lo the Company’s operations or are nol expecled lo have significanl impacl on the Company's financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

- Amendments to IFRS 3 'Businass Combinations' - Refersnce o the conceplual framewaork
- Amendments to [AS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts -
cost of fulfiling a contract

- Annual Improvemeants to IFRS Standards Z018-2020 Cycle (related to IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and |AS 41)

2.4.2 Amendments to accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following amendments are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the dale mentioned
against each of them. These amendments are eithar not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial stalements other than ceriain additional
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Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

- Amendments to |AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure January 01, 2023
of accounting policies

- Amendments o 1AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting January 01, 2023
Estimates and Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates

- Amendments to 'TAS 12 Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to asseis January 01, 2023
and liabilities arising from a single transaction

- Amendments to IAS 12 ' Income taxes' - Intemational Tax Reform - January 01, 2023
Pillar Two Model Rules

- Amendments to JAS 1 'Presentation  of Financial Statements' - January 07, 2024
Classification of habilities as current or non-current

- Amendments lo IFRS 16 ' Leases' - Clarification on how seller-lessee January 01, 2024
subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

- Amendments to 1AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and 'IFRS 7 'Financial January 01, 2024
instruments; Disclosures' - Supplier Finance Arrangements

- Amendments to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between Defarred indefinitely
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Other than the aforesaid amendments, 1ASE has also issued the following standards which have not been
adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 —First Tima Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 —Insurance Contracts

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, reauires management o maks judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
the sccounting policies and the reported amounts of assels, labiliies. Income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from
thesa estimates.

The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates

are recoqnized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects onfy that period, or in the
perod of revision and fulure periods if the revision affects both current and fulure periods. Information  about the
|udgements made by management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most significant

effect on the amcunt recognized in these financial statements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties with
significant risk of material adjustment o the carrying amount of asset and liabilites in the next year are described in the

follwoing notes:

- Impairmant of trade debts and other receivables (notes 4.7.1 and 11.1);

- Residual values, usaeful lives and deprecialion rates of operating fixed assets (notes 4.1 and 5.1);

= Provision against slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade and stores and spares (notes 4.3, 4.4, 9 and 10);
5 Estimate of liabilities in respect of staff retirement benefits (notes 4.9(a) and 38});

5 Provision for taxation and realisability of deferred tax asset (notes 4.11, 8 and 32);

- Provisions and contingencies (notes 4.8 and 24); and

- Revenue recognition (notes 4.12 and 25),

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policles have been applied consistently to all the years presented unless otherwise disclosed or specified.
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Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets - owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognised as a separate asset, as approprate,
only whean it is probable that future benefits associaled with the Hem will low to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
and when these are incurred.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or foss using straight line method whereby the depreciable amount
of an assel is wrlten off over s estimated useful life, In accordance with the rates specified In note 5.1 after
taking into account residual values, if significant. Assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted If appropriate at each reporting date,

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the assets become available for use, while no
depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Gains of losses on the disposal or retirement of propery, plant and eguipment are taken to the statement of
profit or loss in the month in which the disposal is made.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated st cost less accumulatad impairment losses (if any).  All expenditures
connectad 1o the specific assets Incurred during installation and construction period (le. the period fill the related
assel become avallable for use) are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to the relevant
category of operating fixed assets as and when the assets are available for use.

Leases - Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract |s, or containg, a lease based on whether
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a peried of time in exchange for
consideration. Lease erms are negolialed on an individeal basis and contain 8 wids range of different  lerms and
conditions with respect to sll lease arrangements in which it is the lessee. except for shor-term leases (defined
as leases with a lease ferm of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as fablets and personal
compulers, small items of office fumiture and telephones). For these leases, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed. From July 01, 2020, leases are recognised as a right-of-use assel and a corresponding liability at the dale at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Company.

The lease liability Iz initislly measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the rate implicit in the lease, or if this rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payment thet are based on an index or a raie, amounts
sxpecied o be payable by the lessee under residual value guaranises, the exercise price of & purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably cedain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option. less any lease incentives receivable. The extension and
termination options are incorporated In determination of lease term only when the Company Is reasonably certain o
exercise these option.

The lease liability is subsequently measured (st amortised cost) by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
inferest on the lease liability using the effective interest method and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change In fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment Is made 1o the carying
amount of the right of use asset or is recorded In profit and loss if the carrying amount of right of use assel has been

reduced to zero.
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The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease kability adjusted for ‘any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underying asset of to restore the underlying assetl or the site on which It is
located, less any lease incentive received., The right-of-use asset |s depreciated on a straight line method over
the shorter of lease-term or assets economic (ife as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of fulure =sconomic bensfits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impalment losses, [T any, and
adjusted for certain re=measurements of the lease liability.

Wariable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measuremeant of the lease liability and the
right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the ling "Administrative ‘and general expenses”
in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets

An Intangible asset is recognised if it I1s probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the Company and that the cost of such an asset can be measured reliably,

Intangible assets mainly comprise computer software which are initially recognized at cost. Cost represents
the purchase cost of software (license fee), After initial recognition, these are camed at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation on assels with finite useful
life is charged at the rate specifisd in note 6.1 using the straight line method over the useful life of the
assel, Amortisation begins fram  the month the asset 15 available for use and ceases in the month of
disposal [ retirement. The amortisation period and amortisation method are reviewed at each reporting date and are
adjusted, if appropriate, to reflect the current best estimate.

Costs associated with maintaining the compuler software programmes are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cosl, determined using weighted average method, and net realisable value, less
provision for obsolete items (if any). Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice wvalue plus other charges
incurred therson.

Provision is made for items which are obsolete and slow moving and is determined based on management
estimate regarding their future usability.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade comprises of raw and packing materials, work in process and finished goods. These are valued at
the lower of cost (determined using weighted average cosl method) and the nel realisable value (except for those in
transit).

Mel realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost of completion and the costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale. Provision against obsolete and slow
maving stock in trade is determined based on management's best estimate regarding their future usability.

Items in transilt are slated at cost comprising invoice valus and other charges incurred, Cost In relation to work in
process includes material cost and a portion of labour and other overheads incurred. Cost in relation to finished
goods includes cost of direct matenals, direct labour, an appropriate portion of production overheads and the related
dulies,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried In the stalement of financial position at cost / amorised cost. For the
purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and cheques In hand, balances
with banks in current accounts, short-term investments and short-term borrowings under running finance,

Financial instruments

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derscognised on a trade date basis,

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assels within
the time frame established by regulation or convention In the marketplace.
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Financial assets are recognised in the Company's statement of fingancial position when the Company becomes a
parly to the conlractual provisions of the instrument, Financial assets are initially measured al falr value.
Transaction cosls thal are direclly attributable to the acqusition or issue of financial assets (other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair value of the financial assets on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acouisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is lo hold financial assels in order lo
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount culstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOC)

- the financial asset is held within & business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and seliing the financial assets; and

- the contractual lerms of the financial asset give rse on specified dates lo cash flows thal are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FWVTPL).

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizses a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assst
expira, or when it transfars the financial assaet and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assel o anaother entity. If the Company neither transfers nor reiainsg substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest In the
assel and an associated liability for amount it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues lo recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received,

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's statement of financial position when lhe Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumenl. Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the falr value of the financial liabilities on initial recegnition.

All financial liabilities are measured subseguently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FYTPL.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilies when, and only when, the Company's obligations are extinguished,
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the camying amount of the financlal lability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial asselts and financial liabilities are offset and the nel amount is reported In the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
sattle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.
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Asgsets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as = result of statutory requiremerts
imposed by the Govemment are nol the financial instruments of the Company.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss on investments in debl instruments thal are
measured at amortised cost or at FVTOC!, lease receivables, frade receivables and contract assets, as well as
on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Company recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The
expected credit losses on these financial assets are esfimated using a provision matrix based on the historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date including time value
of money whers appropriata.

For all ather financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increasad significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to 12 -maonth ECL.

Lifetime ECL repressnls the expected credil losses that will result from all possible defaull events over the
expected |ife of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the porlion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Mon - financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets {except for deferred tax asset and stock-in-trade) are assessed at
each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists. the
assels recoverable amount s estimated o delermineg the extent of impairmant loss, if any. An impaiment loss
is recognized as an expensa in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less cosl of disposal and value-in-use, Valuse-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future

cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsk

specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there

are separalely identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units),

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used lo determine the recoverable amount,

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's camying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recoanized.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present, legal or constructive  obligation as a resull of past
events, it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adiusted to refllect the current best estimals.

Contingent kabilities are not recognized and are disclosed

- there is possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control on the
Company,

- there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic bensfits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingenl assels are nol recognised unless an inflow of economic benefits is virtually cerlain.
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Employee benefit schemas
The Company operates:

g} an approved funded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent management and non-management staff.
Employees become eligible upon completing  the minimum  qualifying period of service. Annual contributions
are made 1o the scheme based on acluarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation is carried out using
the Projected Unit Credit Method;

Amounts arising as a result of 'Remeasurements’, representing the actuarial gains and losses, and the
difference  between the actual investment retums and the returmn implied by the net interest cost are
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately. with a charge or credit to other comprehensive

income in the year in which these ocour; and

b an approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees. Egual monthly contributions are
made to the Fund by the Gompany and the employees in accordance with the rules of the Fund. Benefils
are payable fo eligible emplovess on completion of the prescribed qualifving period of service under the schems.

Employees’ compensated absences

The Company accounts for its liability in respect of acocumulated absences of employess on unavailed balance
of leaves in the period in which these leaves are earned.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises of current and defared tax.

Current

Provision for current laxation is based on the taxable income at the current rates of taxation after laking Into
gccount iax credits and rebates available, f any, and taxes paid under the final tax regime. The charge for
current tax also includes adjustments, where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed /
finalised during the year.

Deferred

Deferred {ax s recognised using the liability method on all temporary differences  between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities used for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
Company also recognises deferred tax asset on unused tax losses, alternate corporate tax and unused tax credils,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognised
only to the extent that it is probabla that future taxable profite will be available to the Company against which the
temporary difference can be ulilised. Deferred tax assel is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefits will be realised.

Deferred tax asset o liability s measured at the tax rate that is expected o apply to the pericd when the assel is
realised or the liability is setfled, based on the tax rates (and laws) that have besn enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting date.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitied in a contract with
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behall of third parties.

For sales of products, the performance obligation Is judged to have been salisfied and revenue s therefore
recognized upon defivery of the products because legal title, physical possession, significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the product are transferred to customer upen delivery, and the customer obtains control over the products.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
receivad consideration (or an amount of consideration i= due) from the customer. |f a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services 1o the customer, & contract liability is recognised
when the payment Iz made or the payment is due (whichever i earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue whan the Company performs under the contract.
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Other income s recognised on an accrual basis and includes certain reversals, gains and other flems. The
particular recognition criteria of these items is disclosed in the individual policy stalements associated with these items.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expensa in the year in which these are incurred except to the extent of
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of gqualifying assets.
Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant assets.

Government grants

Governmenl grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grant will be received. The benefit of a long<term finance at a below-
markel rate of interest Is treated as a government granl, measured as the difference belween proceeds received
and the fafr value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates. Government grants related to long-term
finances are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognizes
as finance cost related to long term finances at market rate of interesl.

Earnings [ (loss) per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic samings /

(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attrbutable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year Diluted earnings / (loss) per
share is determined by adjusting the profil of loss altrbutable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Proposed dividends and transfers between reserves

Dividends, if any, declared and transfers between reserves made subseguent to the reporting date are
considered &s non-adjusting events and are recognised in the financial statements in the year in which such
dividends are declarad and transfers are made.

Forelgn currency translation

Transactions denominated In foreign currencles are accounted for In Pakistan Rupses al the exchange rales
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are franslated into
Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange approximating those at the statement of financial position date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the transiation at
year end exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities denominzated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Segment reporting

&n operating segment is a component of the Company fthat engages in business activities from which it may
garn revenues and incur expenses thal relates to transactions with any of the other components of the Company.

The Board of Direclors and the Chiel Executive Officer of the Company have been identified as lhe chiefl
operating decision-makers (CODM), who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance
of the operating segments. The management has determined that the Company has a single reportable segment
as the CODM views the Company's operallons as one reporlable segment.

Commitments

Commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred are disclosed in the financial statements at
commilled amounts. Commitments for lellers of credit and letlers of guarantee denominated in forelgn currencies
are expressed in rupee terms at committed amounts.
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57.1 Movement in capital work in progress 2023
Additions Transfars
Opening during the during the Closing
yoear year
Rupees in '000
Stores and spares held for capital expenditune 3,475 12,427 (11,714} 4,188
Flant and machinery (note 5.7.2) 2,035 196,444 - 198,479
5,510 208,871 (11,714) 202,667
2022
: Additions during Transfers >
Cipenin Clos
e the year during the year o
Rupeeas in "000
Stores and spares held for capital expenditure 3844 4,283 14,652) 3475
Plant and machinery 18,062 2.302 (18,329) 2,035
21,906 6.585 (22,981) 5.510

§5.7.2 The weighted average Interest rate for capitalized borrowing cost in the year was 20.87% (2022: Mil). The capitalized
barrowing cost during the year amounts to Rs. 8.38 million (2022 Nil).

5.8 These are kept as collateral with 2 bank under pari-passu charge for obiaining shor-term financing. Details are
provided in note 22.1,

59 This includes head office  building acquired on lease by the Company for a perod of 24 months starting from
February 16, 2020, which expired on Feb 15, 2022 and the Company has renewed lease agreement for another
period of 24 months starting frem February 16, 2022. The Company has made advance payment of lease rentals
for the entire term of the lease This also includes amount perfaining to right of use assel of leased vehicles.

8.10 Subsequent o the year end, upgradation of line-ll project is compleled and transferred 1o operating fixed assels.

2023 2022
Note ~  ====eseeeee- Rupees in ‘000
G, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer softwane a1 1,092 1,876
6.1 Following Is the statement of Intangible assets:
Cpaning nat book value 1,876 1,486
Additions (at cost) . 1,288
Amartisation charge 28 (784) (908)
Closing net book value 1,092 1,876
Closing value - gross amaunt
GCost 5,051 5,051
Accumuiated amortization {3,959) (3,175)
MNet book value 1,092 1,876
Amortisation rate per annum 20% - 33% 20% - 33%
T LONG-TERM LOANS
Loans to employees 7.1 14,700 15,523
Less: receivable within one year 12 (T,274) (7,337
7,426 8,186
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These are inferssi-free loans given to the emplovees as per the terms of employment for purchase of cars,
motor cycles and other general purposes. The loans are repayable in 10 o 80 monthly installments depending
upon the type of lean. These are recovered through monthly deductions from salaries and are secured against
the provident fund balances of the employees As al Juns 30 2023 none of these loans were past due or impaired.,

2023 2022
Note — === Rupees in 000 -eeecmememees

DEFERRED TAX ASSET - NET
Deductible temporary differences
Froperty, plant and equipmant 26,170 14,591
Employees' short-term compensated absences 8,049 8,350
Impairment of trade debts 11,345 B.395
Minimum tax 52,842 17,269
Other provisions 17,230 30,495

115,636 80,700

Deferred tax asset [ (liability) comprises deductible  (taxable) temporary differences in respect of the following:

Deferred tax recognised in

Opening Other Closing
balance Profitand comprehensive balance
loss
income
Movement for the year ended Rupees in '000
June 30, 2023
Deductible / (taxable) temporary difference arising
in respact of
- Property, plant and equipment 14,591 11,579 - 26,170
- Employeess' shorl-tzrm compensated absences 9,350 (1,301) - 8,049
- Impairment of trade debts 8,995 2,350 - 11,345
- Minimum tax 17,269 a5,573 - 52,842
- Other provisions 30,495 {9.227) {4,038) 17,230
80,700 38,974 {4,038) 115,636
Deferred tax recognisad in
Openin Closi
P 0 Profit and Uther . osing
balance comprehensive halance
loss :
income
Movement for the year ended Rupees in ‘000
June 30, 2022
Deductible / (taxable) temporary difference arising
In respect of
- Property, plant and equipment 710 13,881 - 14,581
- Employees' short-term compensated absences 6,521 2,829 - 9,350
- |mpairment of irade debts 8687 g . 8,905
- Unused tax losses 60,851 (B0,851) - -
- Excess of Altermative Corporate Tax
{ACT) over corporate tax 10,447 (10,447 H ¥
- Minimum tax - 17,269 - 17,269
- Other provisions 20,269 9,580 666 30,495
107,785 (27,751) BEG 80,700

D
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10.1

10.2

STORES AND SPARES

Stores

Spares
- in hand
- in transit

Note

Less: provision against slow moving and obsolete stores and spares a1

Movement of provision against slow moving and obsolete stores and spares is as follows:

Mote
Opening balance
Charge for the year
Reversal during the year
Charge during the year - net 30
Closing balance
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw and packing materials
- in hand
- in transit
28
Work-in-prograss 26
Finished goods
- in hand 101
- in transit
28
Less: provision against slow mioving and cbsolete stock-in-trade 10.2
Less! provision against arthopedic knee implants 10.3
Less! provision against stents held with hospitals 10.4

s Ofsuka

2023 2022
Rupees in "000 -
33,590 30,368
31,034 22,145
31,034 22,145
64,624 52,513
(14,309) (11,861)
50.315 40,852
2023 2022
Rupees in "000 -
11,661 2,604
5,048 8,212
(2,400} {155)
2,648 9,057
14,309 11,661
558,262 452,409
141,879 168,544
700,141 620,953
12,533 13,815
387,193 301,035
: 34,283
387,193 335 318
1,099 867 aro 186
(14,820) (6,143)
- {19,582)
{21,079) {16,015)
(35,899) {41,740)
1,063,968 928 446

These include items costing Rs. 16.052 miliion (2022: Rs. 26.265 million) that have been wvalued at their net
realisable value amounting to Rs. 12,146 million (2022 Rs. 22.437 million)

Movement of provision against slow maoving and obsolete stock-in-trade is as follows:

52
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2023 2022
Mote ——Rupees in "000-----

Opening balance 6,143 9,728
Charge for the year 8,677 2,493
Reversal during the year . (6,078)
Charge / (reversal) during the year - nat 29 & 30 8,677 (3,585)
Closing balance 14,820 6,143
Movement of pravision against orthopedic knee implants is as follows:

Opening balance 19,582 20,339
Reversal during the year - net 29 (19,582) {TS7)
Closing balance - 19,582

This represents stents held with various hospitals for sale on consignment, the revenue from which is recorded on
consumption basis. The Company has recorded a full provision against such unsold stents.

2023 2022
Mota ——Rupees in ‘000-----

Opening balance 16,015 10,867
Charge for the year 30 5,064 5,148
Closing balance 21,079 16,015
TRADE DEBTS
Due from Hospital Supply Corporation - a related party 11.4 312,542 125 737
Others 108,257 118,109

418,799 243 B46
Loss allowances 11141 | (39,122) (27 669)

379,677 216177

Expected lifetime credil losses for trade debts are recognized using the simplified approach. This is based on loss
rates calculated from historical and forward-looking data, taking into account the business model, the respective
customer and the economic environment of the geographical region.

The Company writes off trade debts when there |s information Indicating that the debtor is In severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Mo trade receivables have been written off during the year,

The following table shows the movement in provision against trade debts provision:

Collectively  Individually

Total
assessed assessed
Movement of loss allowance e RUpees '000
Balance as at July 1, 2021 - 34,070 34,070
Reversal of provision during the year - net | - (6,097) (6,087)
Wirite-off during the year | 5. [ (304) (304)
= (6.401) (6,401}
Balance as at June 30, 2022 - 27,669 27,669
Provision during the year - net - 11,724 11,724
Whrite-off during the year . (271) {271)
- 11,453 11,453
Balance as at June 30, 2023 - 39,122 39,122
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As gt June 30, 2023 trade debts of Ra. 141.31milion {2022: Fg. Nil milion) represents amountwhich is- overduafrom a relsted party. The
averdugreceivable balance cames mark-up at 1 monthKIBOR (MK) + 2.5% (2022: 3MK + 2.5%) per annumon over due balance. The
remaining balance (excluding impaired debis) relates to a number of independent customers for wham there is no recent history of defaull,

The age analysis of trade debts |5 as follows:

Mot yet dus

Pastdue 1-30 days

Past due 31-60 days

Past due §1-90 days

Past due more than 90 days

Mot yet due

Past due 1-30 days

FPast due 31-60 days

Past dums £1-90 days

Past due more than 90 days

2023
From others From a Total
related
Rupees "000
27,280 171,230 198,510
17,955 105,803 123,758
4,344 35,509 39,853
9,182 - 9,182
47,496 - 47,496

106,257 312,542 418,799

2022
From others From a Total
refated party
e Rupees 000

19,722 125,737 145 459
33,870 - 33,870
10,172 - 10,172

9. 870 - 9 870
44 475 - 44 475

118,109

125,737

Subseguent to the year end, overdue balance has been received by the Company from Hospital Supply

Corporation - a related party.

243, 846

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference fo month-end

balance was Rs. 312,542 million (2022; Rs. 216.337 million).

LOANS AND ADVANCES - CONSIDERED GOOD

Loans to employess - current portion

Advances o
- amployass
- suppliers

Note

7

121
122

2023 2022
--Rupees in '000—
7,274 7337
1,988 1,587
56,117 107,258
58,105 108,815
65,379 116,152

—_— e

These are non-interest bearing advances given to employees to meel business expenses and are settled as and

when expenses are incurred.

Thes includes cash margin of Rs. 16693 milion (2022 Rs. 75986 million) equivalent o import value against

impor of goods.

TRADE DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Trade deposits

Short-tarm prapaymeants

Sales lax adjustable

Surplus on staff retirement fund
Cther receivables

Note

1341

38.1.2

2023

2022

-—---Rupeeas in "000-----

10,396 12,402
6,295 7,498
i 7,207
5,927 -
665 2,125
23,283 29,232
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These represents non-interest beanng earmest monies placed with various parties.
SALES TAX REFUNDABLE

Prior to enactment of Finance (Supplementary) Acl, 2022 (The Act) issued on January 15, 2022, the
pharmaceutical sector was exempl from levy of sales tax. The Act converted the aforesaid exemplion regime
into & zero-rating regime for |mport and local supplies for finished items of pharmaceutical sector, however, sales
tax was imposed at standard rate of 17% on purchase | import of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients [API). As a
resull, the pharmaceutical sector was allowed to claim sales tax refund on all purchases including APls and
provincial sales tax on services Subsequent to year end the Company has received Rs 43 091 milllon

Through Finance Act, 2022, effective from July 1, 2022, a8 special tax regime for pharmaceutical sector has now
been introduced whereby manufacture or import of substances registered as drugs under the Drugs Act, 1976
shall be subject to 1% sales tax with the condition that such tax shall be final discharge of tax in the supply chain
and no input tax shall be allowed to the importer and manufacturer of such goods

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

It includes investment in Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) with a bank. The investment carries fixed retum @
19.93% per annum and is maturing on July 20, 2023,

This TDR Is kept as a 100% Cash Margin securily against the oulstanding benk guarantees issued by the Bank
Al-falah Limited in favor of Collector of Customs.

2023 2022
Mote =-—=Rupees in "000---—
BANK BALANCES
Balances with banks in current accounts 5,828 53.211
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
2023 2022 2023 2022
Number of shares s==== RUpees in "000 «--
__ 20,000,000 _ 20000000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
2023 2022 2023 202z
Number of shares wme= RUp@ES i 000 wmen
10,000,000 10,000.000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 100,000 100,000
2,100,000 2,100,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 Issued as bonus shares 21,000 21,000

12,100,000 12,100,000 121,000

121,000

The following shares were held by the holding company, associated companies and other related paries of the
Company as at June 30;

2023 2022
Mame of the Company Ehh.:gs Percentage  Shares held Percentage
Otsuka Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Japan 5,42!1,245. 44 80%, 5,42{!,243- 44 _B0Y,
P. T. Otsuka Indonesia, Indonesia 1,204,499 9.95% 1,204.498°  9.95%
Ctsuka Pharmaceutical Factory, Inc. 1,589,940 13.14%; 1,589,940 13.14%
Directors, their spouses and minor children 398,668 3.20% 398,618 3.29%
Executives 124 0.00% 121 0.00%

These include shares held by directors nominated by Ofsuka FPharmaceutical Company Limited, Japan and P. T.
Oisuka Indonesia, Indonesia. The nominated directors hold only minimumnumber of shares required to become a

director.
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2023 2022
MNote -—— Rupees in "000 -----

LONG-TERM FINANCE

From banking companies (Secured) - At amortised cost

Refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries 24 661 48,448
Add: Finance cost 31 812 2,830
Less: Repayment (25,473) {26,717}

= 24 661

Less: current portion shown in current liabilities - {24,661)

It represented long-term financing obtained from a conventional bank under the Refinance Scheme for Payment
of Wages and Salaries of State Bank of Pakistan, It carmied mark-up al the rate of 3% per annum, However, the
aeffective  interest rate was calculated at 3 months KIBOR + 1% and the loan was recognised at present value,
The loan was repayable in & equal quarterly instaliments commencing from January 2021, The differential markup
was recognised as government grant which was recognised and presented as reduction of related imterest
expense The financing was secured against first pari-passu hypothecation charge over land and building The
loan was repaid during the year.

expansg, The financing was secured against first par-passu hypothecation charge over land and building. The
loan was repaid during the year

2023 2022
LEASE LIABILITY R 10 O e
Lease liability 8,060 3626
Less : Current maturity of lease liability {1,268) (534)
6,792 3,092
During the year. the Company has entered into lease agreement for two vehicles.
The future payments of lease liabilities are as follows
2023 2022
Future Future
minimum Principal minimum Principal
lease repayments lease rapaymeants
payments paymenis
Rupees in "000
Mot later than 1 year 3.003 1,268 1,071 534
Later than 1 year and not later than § years 9,610 6,702 4,282 3,092

— 12613 8060 5353 _  3.628
Reconciliation of lease liability
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Helulas i:f?::r nft:ITw a:::gl;::l ;I;?:B-::l:::l -l
Rupees in "000"
Lease liability 3,626 - (2,183} 5,352 1,265 8,060
For the year ended June 30, 2022
01-Juk21  Cashinfiow o Wowlemo Tembeen o e
outflow arrangement  adjustment
- Rupees in '000'
Lease liability = : (16,733) 20,323 36 3,626

S6
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2023 2022
Mote —=-=-Rupees in '000-—--
20. SHORT-TERM LOAN FROM A RELATED PARTY - UNSECURED
In foreign currency
Loan from Otsuka Pharmaceutical Factory, Inc. 201 & 202 498,075 378,150

201 This represents foreign currency denominated losn. The loan was obtained in three tranches of JPY 125 million
gach, drawn down on February 26, 2015, Aprl 27, 2015 and July 27, 2015, repayable on or before February 25,
2016, April 26, 2016 and July 26, 2016 respectively. These ware rolled forward annually multiple times. During the
financial year ended June 30, 2021, one tranche drawn down on July 27, 2015 was rapaid on June 30, 2021,
During the financial year ended June 30, 2023, the other two tranches have been rolled forward and are now
repayable on or before February 25 2024 and April 26 2024 respectively.

Mark-up is charged at LIBOR (fixed at the time of receipt of loan) + 0,40% (2022: LIBOR + 0.40%) per annum and is
payable semi-annually in arrears.

2023 2022
Mote ——Rupees in "000-----
20.2 Mavement af the loan is as follows

Opening balance 376,150 358,550
Exchange loss 121,825 19,600
Repaymenl during the year - -

121,925 19,600
Ciosing balance 498,075 378,150

21, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Credilors 112,399 65,021
Bills payable 214 184,707 174,162
Accrued liabilibes 21.3 195,324 224,785
Payable to Employees Provident Fund 3,988 3.893
FPayable to Staff Retiremenl Benefit Fund 36.1.2 - 3,772
Provision for employees short-term compensated absences 27,756 28,334
Sales tax payable 212 13.959 26,200
Retention money 930 930
Security deposits 2,089 2.189
Workers' Welfare Fund T7.072 T.072
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 214 - 19,483
Central Ressarch Fund - 2 8R4
Contract liabilities 215 32,728 33,776
Other liabilities 218 28,604 27,321

609,556 619,922

211 These include amounts payable to the related parties as at the end of the year aggregating o Rs. 92,451 million (2022:
Rs. 70.543 million).

21.2 This includes provision for sales tax in respect of imported materials of polyethylene (for [V solutions) amounting 1o Rs.
9.97 million (2022: Rs. 23.37 million). The Company filed a suit in the Sindh High Court (SHC) on May 17, 2018 against
the imposition of sales tax under the Sales Tax Act, 1990 with respsct to raw and packing material baing imported and
purchased locally by the Company for manufacturing phamaceutical products. The SHC had passed an interim order in
favour of the Company maintaining that items felching customs duly lesser than len percent ad valorem, may not be
subject fo the levy of sales tax. Later en, the case was referred by Customs to the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) and
final judgement was announced by SCP on June 27, 2018 in favor of the industry,

57
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Tha Company had avaded sales tex exemplion under the sforementoned stay arder by prowviding benk gusrantess and at the same time recorded
provisicn to tee extent of amount of guaraniess. During the year, the Company was able to release guarantees amountng to Re, 1343 million (June
30, 2022: Rs, 9.93 million) and has reversed [ provision by e same smeon|

The Supreme Courd of Pakistan (SCP) through lfe Judgment dated Auwgust 13, 2020 "GIDEC Judgment’) declared the Gas Infrastrociure Developmeant
Coss Act, 2015 ("GIDC Act 20157 as valid. The Company filed a review pelition on (he verdicl of Supreme Courl of Pakistan gver GDC announced on
August 13, 2020, on which no relief was granted. The Company has recorded a8 full provsion in the financial statements. However, the Company is
party io fhe joint legal eult in fhe Sindh High Cowrt (SHC} on which SHC granted the Company an interim stsy. The Company has followed the
ralevant accounteyg standards snd guidelines issued by the Instilde of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan i this regand,

2023 2022
Nole  ssscesssses Rupnns ‘000 e

Waorkers® Profit Participation Fund

Balance at July 1 18,483 28,300
Adlacatice for the year 0 - 18,456
19,483 44,756
Interest an funds ulilised in e Company's business 3| 24 f=hil]
20,407 45, 364
Less: amount pald during the year {20,407) (25.881)

Balance at June 30 - 19,463

Durng the year, the performance obligations underlying (he opening contract liability of Rs. 33776 milion were salisfied in full, Accordingly, the said
liability waa recorded as revenus during the year, Infeemation regarding the liming of salisfaction  of performance abligations underlying the closing
contract lisbiily of Rs. 32. 728 million s not presanted since the expected duration

Thig includes regulatory duly payable In respect of imported pharmaceufical products as gre reguired far manufactening puerposes. On Oclober 16, 2007,
{he Fadaeral Board of Reavenue imgosad regulatory duty on import of specified pharmaceubcal products vide SRO 1038 (IN2Z017, In this regard, the
Compary has fled constitutional  petitions I the Honorabie Sindh High Court an Aprl 13, 2098, Aprll 26, 2018, May 9, 2018 and June 27, 2018 agsinst
he levy of aforementionad duty. An interim relief has been granted by the Sindh High Courl. A3 per the intarim relief, the Company is required to pay half
of the reguislory duty. Fer the remalning half, the Company was fequlred 1o ghe security by way of bank guarantee [ pay osder, either lo the
satisfackon  of the Collectorate concemed or the Nazir of the Court, The Company has paid hali of the regulaiory duly and has submitted bank
guaraniees: for the remareng hall to the CoSedorate conperned. Management, 8% @ mabler of abundant cauton, hes recorded Il provison for the
amount of regulatory duty given as benk guarantee amounting to Rs. 10.80 million (2022 Ra. 10.80 millicn) in these financial stetemants From
Janusary 2020 ovwards (he Company g paying full regulatory duty on these Imported products

2023 2022
SHORT-TERM RUMMIMG FINANCE - SECURED Nole  ==-c=<{Rupees "D00)-——
From banking companies - Secured
Shor-term running finance facilibes utilised under
mark-Up arfangements - seosnd 221 451,183 06,062

Particulars of short-term running finance - secured

Limitin  Limitin Rs Fraguency  Facility

Mark
Bank Rs= ‘000" 0’ 0 i Current security of mark-up axplry 2023 2022
2023 2022 paymant date ens R ez T PH0emaes
Citi Bank 800,000 ~ 200,000 1 {a} SECF Regtsterad Joinl Pamn- Cuarterdy  February 451,183 96,062
morih  passu Charge on Fived Assels 28, 2024
KIBOR of Ptant & Machinery for Re. 432

millian

0.60% b} SECP Registerad Joint Pan-
pa  passu Charge on Current Assels
for Rs. 778 mélion

900,000 500,000 451,183 96 D62

* This ghoel teem running france facility is Intarchangeake with letter of cradil and lathar of guarantes

58)
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Details of import letters of credit (sight / usance [ acceptance) and letters of guarantee

The Company is availing the sub-limil facilities relating to the import letler of credit (sight / usance | acceptance)
available from the banks as at June 30, 2023 amounting to Rs. 9146 million (2022: Rs1.000 million) out of which
Rs. 449 million (2022: Rs.804 million) are available for utilization of import letter of credit and letter of guarantee.

During the year ended June 30, 2023 the Company has ulilised the Letter of Credit facilily amounting to Rs
111.53 milion (2022: Rs.207.6 milion). In addition, the Company has also utilized the letter of guaraniee

As al June 30, 2023, the unavailed facility amounts to Rs. 305.2 million (2022: Rs. 554 milllon) which can be
utilized for running finance, letter of credit or letter of guaranies,

2023 2022
MARK-UP ACCRUED ——Rupees in "000-—--
- Short-term running finance - secured 21,977 1,034
- Long term finance - 159
- Short-term loan from a related party - unsecured 825

22 BO2 1223
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS —-Rupees in '000-—--

Commitments in respect of:

Letters of credil 111,526 207,636
Letters of guarantee 32,802 42 076

On March 05, 2014, a notice of demand was served on the Company by the Additional Commissioner Inland
Revenue (ACIR) for an amount of Rs. 164.778 million (2022: Rs. 164,778 million) under section 122 (8A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The ACIR added back certain items such as exchange loss, claims against
provisions and write-offs of inventory, discounts and rebates on sales and trade debls and disafllowed finance
cost in the income retumed for tax year 2012, Tha Company filed an appeal with the Commissioner Infand
Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)] who upheld the action of ACIR en cerain items against which the Company filed an
appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) to review the action of the CIR{A) On January 18,
2017 hearing of ATIR was held and on April 10, 2017 an order was served in which the decision of cerain items
were remanded back to the ACIR for further examination.

On December 28, 2017, an appeal effect order was passed by the ACIR under section 124/122{5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, Through the said order of ACIR (which is in context of the earlier decision by the ATIR dated April 10,
2017 mentioned above) a demand of Bs. 271408 million was determined. Furthermore, in respect of the malters decided
by the ATIR in favour of the Company, the ACIR has filed an appeal in the High Court of Sindh and consequently appeal
effect has nol been allowed on mallers agitated in the SHC.

The Company filed another appeal against the above order of Rs. 21.408 million before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals-ll) [CIR(A)] along with the stay application. Upon raguest, the CIR{A) acceded to grant stay against
recovery lll Februarny 15, 2018, On April 13, 2018 an appeal effecl order was passed by the ACIR under section
124/122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby relief has been allowed In respect of certain matters whereas
disallowance has bean maintained in respect of cerain othar mattars. As a result, a demand of Rs. 12,699 million has
been raised by the ACIR which has been sellled by the Company in prévious years under protest through adjustment of
refund relating to the tax year 2015. As a matter of abundant caution, management has recorded a provision of Rs.
12 689 million with corresponding adjustment to refund liability to tax yvear 20135,

During the year ended June 30, 2020, electricity charges were increased by Rs. 6.8 milllon through the impaosition
of Industrial Support Package Adjustment (ISPA) for the off pesak hours with retrospective application from July
01, 2019. The case was filed through a joint Constitutional Petition no. 2581 of 2020 before the Hon'ble High Court
of Sindh, at Karachi through the association of Mfs. Lasbela Chamber of Commerce and Indusiry (LCCI) located
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in LIEDA to challenge the above-said charges. During the financial yvear ended June 30, 2021, the Company has
issued an undated cheque amounting 1o Rs. 6.8 milion in favour of Nazir of Sindh High Courl as per the Interim
directives issued by the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh, thereafter a judgment has been passed by the Hon'ble High
Court of Sindh in favour of the Company which has been challenged by K-Electric in the Hon'ble Supreme Court
of Pakistan. Management has assessed favorable outcome of the case, however, as a matter of abundant

caution a provision of Rs, 6.8 million has besn made in tha financial statements.

During 2019, the retum of income for tax year 2018 was selected for audit under section 177 of the Incoma Tax
Ordinance, 2001 by the Deputy Commissicner Inland Revenue (DCIR). Under the notice, certain information was
required to be fumished, which was duly submitted by the Company.

During 2020, the retumn of income for tax year 2019 was selected for audit under section 177 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 by the Deputy Commizsioner Infand Revenue (DCIR). Under the notice, cerain information was
reauired o be furmished, which was duly submitted by the Company.

s Ofsuka

2023 2022
Mote -=—=-Rupees in "000—--
SALES - NET
Sales [net of returns of Rs. 5.1 million (2022: Rs. 6.6 million)] 3,413,221 3,164,081
Less: sales tax (59,034) (6,246
3,354,187 3,157,835
Less: discounts {319,102) (306,102)
3,035,085 2,851,733
COST OF SALES
Faw and packing material consumed:
Opening stock 620,953 292,519
Purchases 1,145,837 1,178,180
Closing stock 10 (700,141} (B20,953)
1,066,749 830,748
Stores and spares consumed 90,646 73,087
Salaries, wages and benefits 261 408,864 379,636
Rent, rates and laxes 10,579 16,472
Insurance 3,869 3,632
Fuel and power 274,604 196,056
Repairs and maintenance 11,268 4,782
Travelling and vehicle running expenses 61,687 39,853
Communication and stationary 477 512
Depreciation 5.4 84,800 87,188
Other expanses 11,099 5,408
957,893 809,626
2,024,642 1.660,372
Work-in-progress
Dpening stock 13,815 0,491
Cilosing stock 10 (12,533) {13,915}
Cost of goods manufacturad 2,026,024 1,655,048
Opening stock of finished goods 335,318 321,167
Finishad goods purchased 432,748 301,076
Cost of samples shown under selling and distribution expanses (15,723) {17,706)
Closing stock of finished goods 10 (387,193) (335,318)
(402,918) (303,024)
___ 2391174 _ 1925157

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 13.845 million (2022: Rs. 14.217 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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2023 2022
Mote s==Rupees in "000-—-
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 271 120,482 130,460
Fent, rates and taxes 1,305 1,124
Insurance 6,481 4,920
Repairs and maintenance 192 111
Travelling and vehicle running expsnses 10,804 8,981
Communication and stationary 1.815 2,134
Advertising samples and promotional expenses 112,425 120,490
Cutward freight and handling 103,227 77,804
Depreciation 5.4 2,535 2,152

348173

350,266 :

Salanes, wages and benefits include Rs. 7.950 million (2022: Rs. 6,718 million) in respact of staff retirement banefits.

2023 2022
Note ———Rupees in "000-—-
ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and bensfits 281 78,061 84,659
Rent, rates and taxes G669 Ga2
Insurance 1,493 1,320
Fual and power 2,863 2,082
Repairs and maintenance 1,454 440
Travelling and vehicle running expenses 6,616 5,020
Communication and stationery 853 1,131
Subscription 1,972 2,639
Legal and professional charges 4,485 18472
Depreciation 5.4 10,586 10,485
Amaortisation 6.1 T84 208
General expenses 17,352 14,026
—_127.233 141,853

Salaries, wages and benafits include Rs 3.502 million (2022 Rs 3,148 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

2023 2022
MNote meRpaes in "000-—
OTHER INCOME

Liabilittes no lenger payable-wnitten back - 10
Late payment charges from Hospital Supply Corporation - a related party 15,477 4,618
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net 21,942 7,014
Scrap sales 31,144 22,058
Reversal of provision against slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade 10.2 - 3,585
Reversal of provision against orthopedic knees implants 104 19,582 57
Reimbursamant of pharmacovigilance cost - 11,738
Others 13,729 3,855
101,874 54,535
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OTHER EXPENSES

Exchange loss - net

Auditor's remuneration and other professional services
Donations

Waorkers' Walfare Fund

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Central Research Fund

Provision against slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade
Provision against stents held with hospitals

Provision against obsolete stores and spares

Bank charges and commission

Othars

Auditor's remuneration

Statutory audit fee

Fee for the review of condensed inlerm financial information

Fes for lax advisory services
Fes for special cerliflications
Out-of-pocket expenses

Mota

30.1

30.2 & 30.3

214

102
104
841

2023
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2022
--=--Rupees in "000-—-

192,097 75,116

2,400 2,524

300 550

N 5,027

= 19,4556

” 2,984
8,677 -

5,064 5,148

2.648 9,057

505 582

- 5444

211.691 125,888

1,198 1.089

532 484

230 475

253 285

187 181

2.524

2.400 £

Reciplents of donations do not Include any donee in whom Chief Executive Officer, directors or their spouse had

any interest.

Following are the name of donea(s) to whom the donation amount exceeds 10% of the Company's total amount of

donation;

5. No. Mame of donee

1 Zafar and Alia Foundation Charitable Trust
Z Al Khidmat

FINANCE COST

Interest on long term financing

Amaortisation on deferred Government grant

Net finance cost on loan from banking companies
Shorl-term loan frem a related party

Short-term running finance

Cn utilising Worker's Profit Paricipation Fund
Unwinding of finance cost on lease liability

Note

18

21.4
18.3

2023

2022

w===-Rupees in Q00—

231 500
41 -
812 2.930
(612) (1.489)
200 1,441
3,049 2,513
58,785 2,067
924 608
1,265 36
64,223 6,665
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2023 2022
Mote =====Rupees in "000-=---

TAXATION - NET
Current
- for the year 321 45,365 B2 663
- for prior years {2,499) -
- Super tax 322 {25,037) 42 418

17,829 106,081
Defarred 8.1 {38,974) 27,751

(21,145) 132,832

Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

(Loss) / profit before taxation (28,352) 364,629
Tax charge @ 29% (2022: 29%) (8,222) 106,742
Tax effact of:

-Prior year tax adjustiments (2,499) -
-impact of FTR 3,829 288
-Impact of tax credit - (104)
-Impact of super tax (25,037) 42418
-Impact of change in rate {7.689) (14,867)
-impact of Minimum tax - imports 15,618 x
-Effect of utilization of tax credits previously not recognized - (4,793)
-Others 2,855 4,138

(21,145) 132,832

Return for tax year 2022 has been filed by the Company and is deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Contingencies in respect of taxation are detailed in notes 24.2 and 32.3.

During 2022, the Government of Pakistan, through Finance Act, 2022 introduced section 4C in the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 through which super tax was levied on high earnings persons (including the Company). The tax is
apolicable at different rates on all persons (including the Company) =arning more than Rs. 150 million. Further,
entities operating In various sectors, including pharmaceutical sector, and earning more than Rs. 300 million are
liable to super tax at 10% (for tax year 2022} of income a2 specified in the Act Accordingly, the Company had
made a provision of Rs. 42 418 million on account of super tax during prior year.

During the year, the Company along wlih other entities (petitioners), in connected petitions, challenged the vires of
section 4C related to super tax in the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) on the grounds that such tax has been
apolied retrospectively for TY 2022 (financial year ended June 30, 2022), The SHC, on Oclober 3, 2022, granted
interim reliel to the petitioners, including the Company, and directed to secure the dispuled amount of super tax
bafore tha Mazir of the SHC by fumishing either the pay order, bank guarantee or cheque within stipulated time,
which the Company has not yel provided

On December 22, 2022, the SHO Issued an order declaring that section 4C shall not be applicable for TY 2022 and
would apply from TY 2023 (ie., financial year ending June 30, 2023). However, the SHC had suspended the
operation of the judgement for a period of sixty days. On February 16, 2023, the Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan (SCP) through an interim order directed to pay super tax to the extent of 4% for tax year 2022
Accordingly, the Company has revised its provision for the super tax to be kept at 4% on the taxable income for the year
ended Juna 30, 2022,
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Through the Finance Act, 2017, Section 54 of the Income Tax Ordmance. 20097 was amendad. Throwgh the revised provison 8 tex equal o 7.5
parcent of accounting profit for the year will be levied on every public company, other than & scheduled bsni and modaraba, if distnbubon  of
cash dividend or bonus shares of Bl keast 40 percent of e accounting  profil afler lax for the year is nol made In this connestion,  the
Company has lled a constiutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High Courl on August 27, 3017 seeking a declaration and imunclicn
therefraom against the Federation of Pakistan amd others to suspend the aforemanfioned impositon of tax on undisifbuted profit of the Company
and has been granted a siay order by the Honorable Sindh High Courl in respect of lewy of the above tew. BHC has announced e judgement on April
30, 2021 which stales thal Sinserdion of seclion BA in the Income Tax Ordinence 2001, including  amendments (hereto Trom Gme Lo tme, doss
mot fall within the parameters delineated per Amicle 73 of the Constitution of Pakaian, 1873, hence, the provision impugned 5 found fo be ultea
vires of the Consbifution, and Is hereby siruck down. As 8 consequence, any show cause | demand notices or constifuents thereof, seeking
enforcemant of seclion 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, are harety set aside,

O Juby 1, 2022 the Company & 0 recelpt of a legal notice from the Commissones inland Revenus, (Legal) and informed that they are filing in a vl appeal
in Sindh High Court (SHC) agadnst this judgement The maragement as a matker of abundant prudence hes recorded 8 provision amounting o Rs. 14.713
millian in respect of the additional tax liabily

2023 2027
LOSS | EARNINGS PER SHARE Nt g O .
Basic
(Loss) / profit for bhe yesar (7,207} 231,797

~——Numbears of shares-—-—
Waighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year 172 12,400,000 12,100,000
Rupoes

(Loss) f samings per share - basic and diubed {0.60) 19,16

Diluted

The Impact of dilution an earnings per share has nol been presanted a8 the Company did net have any comvertible insiruments i Bsue 2% al Jung
30, 2023 and June 3%, 2022 which wauld have had amy effect on the eamings per share If the optlan to.convert had besn exercised,
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalenis included in tha statement of cash fows comprise the follewing ilems includad in the statement of fnancial
position:

2023 2022
MNaote —-Rupaes In ‘B00-——--
- Bank balances 18 5828 53,211
- Sher term investments 15 14,840 -
- Shrt-durm uining nance b} 451, 183) {96,082)
(430,745) {42 851)

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, IRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregale amounl charged In the financlal stalements lor remuneraiion, including bensfiis, o the Chief Executive, Ddrectors and

Executives ol the Company are as follows:

Chief Exacutive Diractors Exacutivas
Particulars 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rug in ‘000

Marnagarial remumseration 18,551 15,528 - . 82,538 68 6az
Bonus - 7.000 - - 2,084 12,266
Medical expanses am 7 = - 4,702 5164
Leave fare assisiance | ancashment 1,876 1,705 - - 3,304 9 06
Maating fes - - 40U 3an - -
Technical advisory fee ! Contract fee - - 3,888 3,500 T, 088 7,880
Ratirarmen! banefits 1374 1,20 - - 6,130 6,944
Cithers. 306 a1 - - 2357 2451

20,983 20,638 4 284 3.880 94,220 112461
Mumber of personis] < 1. A 4 4 21 20
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The Chiefl Exacutive Officer and certain axeculives are provided fres uae af the Company maintained cars and are antitled o cartain
reimbursable business expenses such as communication charges and fuel expenses as per the terms of employment.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined benefit plan - staff retirement gratuity scheme

A5 mantioned i nota 4.9 (a), the Company oparates an approved furided gratuity scheme for all its management and non-managemant
staff. The latest actuarial valuation of the fund was cared out at June 30, 2023, The Projected Unit Cradit Method with the following
significant assumplions was used for the valuation of the scheme:

2023 2022
Principal actuarial assumptions
a) Discount rate 15.75% 13.25%
b) Expected rate of retum on plan assets 15.75% 13.25%
c! Expected rate of increase in salary
- management staff 13.75% 12%
- non-management staff 13.75% 12%
d} Mortality rates Adjusted SLIC  Adjusted SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005
a)  Withdrawal rates Moderate Moderals
2023 2022
Mote =R UP @RS i1 DD
Amount recognised in the statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation 136,398 126,617
Less: fair value of plan assets {142,325) (122 .845)
21 (5,927) 3,772

The movement in net defined banefit liability during the year is as follows:

Year ended June 30
2023

Present value
of defined Fair value of Mat defined
benefit plan assets  benefit liability
obligation

- Rupees in "000

As at July 1, 2022 126,617 {122,845) 3,772
Currant service cost 10,713 - 10,713
Interest expense / (income) 15,952 (15,981) (29)
Remeasuraments:

- loss from the changas in financial assumptions - - i

- experience adjusiments {5,951} (7,973) {13,924}

{5.951) (7.973) [13,924)

Contributions made - {6,459) (6.459)
Benefits paid (10,933} 10,933 -
As at June 30, 2023 136,398 (142,325) (5,927)
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Year ended June 30

2022

Present value of

dafined benefit Fair value of Met defined

pian assels benefit liability

abligation
——— Rupees n "0 —————
As at July 1, 2021 117117 {113,021) 4 096
Current senvice cost 9, 540 - 9 580
Interest expense | (incomes) 11.025 (11,285) (260
Remeasurements:
- loss from the changes in financial assumptions 1,219 = 1,219
- expenence adjustments {63) 1,140 1.077
1,156 1,140 2,296
Contributions made - (11,950) (11,950)
Benefits paid {(12.271) 12,771 -
As at June 30, 2022 126,617 {122,845) 3,772
2023 2022
—Rupees in ‘000
36.1.3 Amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 10,713 9,590
Interest cost 15,952 11,025
Expectad return on plan assels (15,981) (11.285)
Expense for the year 10,684 9,330
36.1.4 Amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (13,924) 2,296
36.1.5 Composition of plan assets
- A5 at June 30, 2023 --- -— A5 al June 30, 2022 —

Rupees in '000  Percentage Rupees In '000 Percentages

Treasury Bills 128,833 81.22% 106,904 B7.02%
Defence Saving Certificates 9,480 6.66% 6,632 5.40%
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 0.00% 7624 6.21%
Cash and cash equivalents 3012 2.12% 1,685 1.37%

142,325 100.00% 122.845 100.00%

36.1.6 The gratuity schame axposes the Company to tha following risks:
a) Longevity risks

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level
over the entire retiree population.

b} Investment risk

The risk arises when the actual performance of the Investments s lower than expectation and thus creating a shortfall
in the funding objactives.

5/




c) Salary increase risk

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary.

 Limited

arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the lability accordingly.

d)  Withdrawal risk

% Otsukao

The risk

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk o the benefit

obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

36.1.7  The sensitivities of the defined benafit obligation to changes in the principal actuarial assumptions are as under:

36.2

ar.

- June 30, 2023 - e June 30, 2022 —eeeeeeee
Increase / (decrease) in present Increase / (decrease) in
Change in value of defined benefit present value of defined
o— s ; Change In g
articulars assuﬂ ptio obligation assumption banefit ublbgRall:ﬂnes -
(%) Rupees in '000 (%) F.j:m
Disecounl rate +1% (4.98) (9,790} +1% (5.49) {6,946)
1% 5.55 T.571 1% 6.13 7,766
Salary rate +1% 5.62 7.659 +1%: 6.19 7.832
1% (5.12) (6,878) 49 (5.62) (7.118)
Withdrawal rate +10% 0.13 175 +10% 0.14 177
-10% (0.13) (182) -10% (0.14) (184}

The above sensilivity analysis is based on a change In an assumption while holding all other assumplions
constant, When calculating the sensitivity of the defined bensfit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of fhe reporing period) has been applied as when calculating the liability against gratuity recognised in the
statement of financial position,

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is approximately 5.21 years (2022; 5.83) years,
Defined contribution plan - staff provident fund

Investments oul of provident fund have been made in Defence Savings Cerdificate and Bank Balances and arg in
accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Acl, 2017 and the Rules formulated for this

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include Olsuka Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the holding company, associated companies [
undertakings (namely Otsuka Pharmaceutical Factory Incorporation, Japan, Thai Otsuks Pharmaceutical Company
Limited, Thailand, P.T. Otsuksa Indonesia, Otsuka Pharmaceutical Company, Shanghai Micro port Medical (Group)
Company Limited. etc.), entities wnder common directorship [namely Hospital Supply Corporation, Danish
Enterprises, Qubittech, Husein & Husein], staff retirement funds and the key management personnel, Details of
the transactions with the related paries and the balances with them as at period end other than those which have
been disclosed else where are as follows:

Name of related Relationship with the Mature of 2023 2022
party Company transaction — Rupees in "000 --——
Dtsuka Ultimate Parent Purchases 16,192 1,162
Pharmaceulizal Markup on loan 3,049 2513
Factory Inc. Dividend paid 2,385 2,385
Otsuka Parent Company Furchases 138,909 93,695
Pharmaceutical Co, Reimbursement of PV Cost - 16,290
Ltd. Dividend paid 8,131 8131

@
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Name of related Relationship with the Mature of 2023 2022

party Company transaction s=e=== Rupees in "000 -—--

Otsuka FParent Company Sales Incantives an UBIT Tablets 4,881 -

Pharmaceutical Co, Reimbursement of Expired 2,267 -

Lid. UBIT Tablets

Hospital Supply Commuon Directorshio Late paymenl surcharge on

Corporation recelvables 15477 4,618
Sales - gross 1,556,111 1,458,652
Salas returm 160 1,233
Sales discounts ! claims 225,169 213,633
Purchases 1,110 -

Microport Medical — Associated undertaking Purchases - 34,622

(Shanghai) Co.. Lid,

Thai Otsuka Asgsociated undertaking Furchases 66,354 66,066

Pharmaceutical Co.

Lid.

PT. Otsuka Associated undertaking Purchases 31,353 10416

Indonesia Dividend 1,806 1,806

Shanghai Microport  Associated undertaking Purchases 15,651 20,9398

EPMED Tech Co.

Limitsd

Danish Enterprises  Others Furchases 10,895 5,636

Ciubitech Others Furchases 2,001 460G

Husein and Husain  Others Consultancy services 149 255

Diractor Indapendant Director and Meeting faes 400 280

Mon Executive director

Otsuka staff Prowident fund Contribution during the year to 14,658 14.624

prowvident fund the fund

Otsuka staff Gratuity fund Contribution during the year to 6,459 11,850

gratuity fund the fund

Key Management Key Management Personnel  Remuneration paid 68,901 81,519

Personnel Advance received for car - 794
contribution

Mr. Mehtabuddin Director Consultancy charges 3,888 3,500

Feroz Dividend 597 59V

The Company enters into transactons with relaled partiss for the sale of its products, purchase of raw materials,
finished goods and spare parts for rendening of cerain services, [n addition, the Company has alsa enterad into
financing arrangement with tha group company. Sales to related parties reprasent sales made to Hospital Supply
Corporation which is the sole distributor of the Company's products in the southern region. The Company allows
discount to the distnbutor on trade prce based on the agreed terms. Purchases from relafed parties primanly
represent purchase of raw malerials and finished goods from Olsuka group companies.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility  for planning, direcling and
contraling the activiies of the Company, The Company considers all members of their management team,

including the Chiel Executive Officer and working directors 1o be ils key management personnel.
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Name of related Relationship with the Nature of 2023 2022
party Company transaction --— Rupees in "000 —----
Otsuka Pharmaceutical Factory Ltimate Parent  Short term loan payabls
Inc. including accrued markup 498,970 376,150
FPayable against purchases 16,246 -
Otsuka Pharmaceutical Co, Lid. Parant company Payable against purchases 68,706 31.853
Advance against reimbursement - 475
pharmacovigilance cost
Hospital Supply Corporation Common Recelvable agalnst sale of goods 312,542 125,737
Directorship
Thai Otsuka Pharmaceutical Co.  Associated Payable against purchases - 30,737
Ltd. Undertaking
Shanghai Microport Medical Associated Payable against purchases 172 123
(Group) Co., Lid, Undertaking
Shanghai Microport EPMed Tech  Associated Payable against purchases 7327 T.831
Co., Limited Lindertaking
Shareholders Shareholdars Payable to shareholdars 363 363
Oisuka staff provident fund Provident fund Payable o Employvess Provident 3,088 3,893
Fund
Otsuka staff gratuity fund Gratuity fund {Receivable from) / Payable lo {5,927) 3,772
Staff Retirement Banefit Fund
Key Management Personnel Key Advance from key 1,124 1,306
Management managemeant parsonnal
Following are the details of relaled parlies:
-] Aggregate %
" |Name of Related Party Basis of association af
No.
shareholding
1 Hospital Supply Corporation, Pakistan Common directorship MR
2 Danish Enterprises Other associated undertaking MiA
3 Otsuka Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Japan Parent /| Holding Company 44.80%
4 P. T. Otsuka Indonesia, Indonesia Other associated undertaking 9.95%
5 Thai Otsuka Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Thailand Other associated undertaking R
G Shanghai Microport Medical (Group) Company Limited, China Other associated underaking ¢ [Fa
[ Ehanghai Microport EFMed Tech Co., Limited, China Other associated undertaking A
& Otsuka Pharmaceutical Factory, Inc., Japan Other associated undertaking 13.14%
4 Mr. Mehtabuddin Feroz Director 3.29%

Q
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5, Aggregate %
No. Mame of Related Party Basis of association of
shareholding
10 Mrs. Mehtabuddin Feroz Spouse of Director 0.00%
11 Mr. Muhammad Hanif Sattar Key Management Personnel 0.00%
12 Mrs. Muhammad Hanif Sattar Spouse of Director 0.00%
13 Mr. Makio Bando Director 0.00%
14 Mrs. Makio Bando Spouse of Director 0.00%
15 Mr. Koichl Okada Director 0.00%
16 Mr. Suhari Mukti Direcior 0.00%
17 Mrs. Suharl Mukti Spouse of Director 0.00%
18 Mr. Abid Hussain Director 0.00%
18 Mrs. Abid Hussain Spouse of Director 0.00%
20 Mrs. Navin Salim Merchant Director 0.00%
21 Mr. Salim Hussain Merchant Spouse of Director 0.00%
22 Qubitech Other associsted undertaking 0.00%
23 Soner Bank Limited Common directorship 0.00%
24  Exide Pakistan limited Commaon directorship 0.00%
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31.2 Following are the detalls of associated underiakings incorporated outside Pakistan:

% Otsukao

Aggregate % of
shareholding,
X includin
S Name of undertaking Registered address . Cauntry ?r East_s c_'f sharehnid?ng
Mo. incorporation | association
through other
companies or
entities
1 |Otsuka Pharmaceutical Dsalka Headguarters Japan Farent / Holding 44 830%
Company Limited, Japan 3-2-2T, Otedori, Company
Chuo-ku, Osaka 540-0021
2 |P. T Oisuka Indonesia, FPertkantoran Hijau Orkadia, |indonesia Oiher associated 0.95%
Indonesia Tower A, LT3, JI. Letjen. TB. underiaking
Simatupang Kav.88, Jakarta
3 |Thai Otsuka Pharmaceutical |15th. Floor, Unit No. 1501- |Thailand Other associated MN/A
Company Limited, Thailand [1502, United Center Building undertaking
323 Silom Read, Bangkok
4 [Shangnai Microport Medical |501 Newton Road, China Dther associated MA
(Group) Company Limited, |Zhangjfiang undertaking
China Hi-Tech Park,
A [Shanghai Microport EFMed |Building #25, Lane 538, China Other associated MiA
Tech Co_, Limited. China Tianxiong Road, Pudong undertaking
Mew District, Shanghai, P R
& |Oisuka Pharmaceutical 115 Kuguhara, Tateiwa, MuyiEapan Ciher associated 13.14%
Factory, Inc., Japan cho, Naruto, Tokushima underiaking
2023 2022
Mote -—-Rupees in "000—--—--
38. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(Loss) / profit before taxation (28,352) 364 579
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items
Depreciation 54 47,821 09 325
Amortization 6.1 T84 a0s
Provision / (reversal of provision) against impairment of frade debts  11.1.1 11,724 (6.097)
Liabilities no longer payable-write back 29 - (10}
Gain on dispesal of operating fixed assets - net 29 (21,942) (7.913)
Reversal of provision against orthopedic knee implants - net 29 (19,582) (757)
Frovision / (reversal of provision) against skow moving and
chsolete stock-in-frade - net 20 & 30 8,677 (3.535)
Workers” Welfare Fund 30 = 5027
Workers' Profit Pariicipant Fund 30 - 19.456
Central Research Fund 30 . 2884
Frovision against stents held with hospitals 30 5,064 5,148
Frovision against obsolete stores and spares 30 2,648 0,057
Finance cost 31 64,223 f,665
Frovision for gratuity 36.1.3 10,634 Q330
Frovision for employees short-term compensated absences 4177 b 457
LUinrealised exchange loss 125,285 22133
Working capital changes 38.1 {236,698) (411,794)
24 613 120 463
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Working capital changes

(Increase) | decrease in current assets
Sloras and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade debis
Loans and advances
Sales tax rafundabla
Trade deposits, short-term prepayments and other receivables

Increase in current liabilitie
Trade and othar payables

STAFF STRENGTH
Mumber of employeas at Junea

Avarage numbar of ampioyees during the year

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Otsuka

2023 2022
---—-FRIIPBIB‘I in 000~
(12,411) (3,966)
(120,681) (347.019)
{175,224) 81,305
50,773 (77.241)
7,568 (97.831)
11,676 {5.052)
{246,798) (450, 804
10,101 38,010
{236,698) #1794
Number of employees
362 ara
368 374

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reporiable segment.

Sales from Intravenous Solutions reprasent B3.03 percent while sales from others represant 16.97 percent (2022: 8519 percent

and 14.81 percent) respectively of the total revenue of the Company.

Sales percantage by geographic region is as follows:

Pakistan
Afghanistan

2023 222
in percent
9800 98458
2.00 152

All non-current assats of the Company as at June 30, 2023 are located in Pakistan.

Met sales to Hospital Supply Corporation {a related party of the Company) which Is the sole distributor in the southern region is
around 43.85 percent during the financial vear ended June 30, 2023 (2022; 43,67 percent),

FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets al amortized cost
Long-term loans
Long-lerm deposits
Trade debts
Trade deposils and othar raceivables
Short-term investmen
Barnk balanca

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Short-farm lnan fram a related party
Trada and other payables
Long-term finance
Unclaimed dividend
Short-term running finance - secured
Mark-up accrued
Leaza liability

2023 2022
wememmas RUp@2S N ) eememen
14,700 15,523
3.601 2335
379,677 216977
11,061 14,527
14,610 -
5,828 5321
429,567 301,773
498,075 376,150
555,787 530 407
- 24,661
1,765 1.683
451,183 86,062
22,802 1,223
8,060 3626
1,537,682 1033718
- I —




Limited

s Ofsuka

42, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities exposa it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and lquidity risk.

The Company, currently finances Its operations through eaquity, borrowing and management of working capital with a
view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk and provide maximum return
to shareholders, The Company's risk management policies and objectives are as follows:

421 Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal the fair valee or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a resull of
changes in markel prices, Market risk comprises three types of nsks: currency nsk, yield | interest rate risk and other
price risk.

4211 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changas in forelgn exchangs rates, Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist in forsign
currencies. As at June 30, 2023, financial liabilities of Rs, 682782 million (2022: Rs. 550.312 million) are payable in
foreign currencies which have exposed the Company fo foreign currency risk, The currency wise details of these
habilities have been provided below.

2023 2022
Mote —-Rupees in "000-—
Short-term loan from a related party - unsecured
Yen 20 498,075 are 150
Bills payahle
US Dollar 154,986 163,784
Eurg 10,236 4,707
Yen 19,485 5,671
21 184,707 174,162

The Company manages currency rsk by adjusting its timings of seftlement of forelgn currency denominated labilllies
50 as to ensure that transactions are settled on terms that are favourable to the Company.

Asg at June 30, 2023, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened | strengthened by 10% against foreign currencies with all
other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower ( higher by approximately Rs. 68.28
million (2022 Rs 5503 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses [ gains on transistion of foreign currency
denominated financial abilities.

421.2 Yield ! interest rate risk

Yield / interast rate rizk iz the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becausa
of changes in markel interest rates,

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Fresently, the Company has financing from its related party based on the LIBOR at the time of financing. LIBOR is fixed
atl the time of financing, The Company also has investment In Term Deposit Receipis (TDR) with a bank. The
investment carrigs fixed retum, Since thess financial liabilities and assets are nol kept &t f@ir value, | doss not exposs
the Company to any fair value | interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Presently, the Company has KIBOR based rupee financing representing short-term running finance arrangements
abtained from a hank that expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, In case of increase [ decrease in KIBOR
by 100 basis points on the last repricing date with all other variables held constant, the profil before lax for the year
ended June 30, 2023 would have baen lower [ higher by Rs. 4.5 million (2022: Ks. 0.96 million).

®
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The movement in the liabilities under short-term finances utilised under mark-up arrangements and KIBOR is
expacted to change over time, Therefora, the sensitivity analysis prepared as at June 30, 2023 is not necessarily
indicative of the effect on the Company’s profits f losses due (o fulure movement in interest rates,

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments iz based on the earlier of the
contractual repricing or maturity date and for the off-balance sheet instruments is based on the settlemant date.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than these arsing from interest rate risk or currency  risk) whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting sl similar
financial instruments traded in the market. Currently, the Company does not hold any instruments which expose
it to price risk

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss i the counter party falls to discharge s obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss, The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit axposuras,
limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the credit worthiness of its counterparties.

The Company's policy Is lo enter into financial contracts in accordance with the policies and guidelines approved
by the management. Credit risk arises from bank balances, term depesit receipts, trade debts, loans and
advances, deposits and other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is egual o the camying amount
of the total financial assets Le. Rs. 429.58 milllon {2022: Rs. 301.77 milion) of which trade debts amounting to
Rs. 370.68 million (2022: Rs. 216.17 million) constitute a significant portion. Of these trade debts, Rs 31254
milfion (2022; Rs. 125.74 million) are receivable from a related parly from which the Company does nol expecl a
defaull. The remaining trade debts (excluding impaired debts) relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there i no recent history of default, Loans and advances to employees are secured against their
respeclive balances maintained under emploves benefil schemes. The Company s also exposed to counterparty
credil risk on balances with banks which is limited as the counterparties are banks having reasonably high credit ratings.
The credit quality of the bank balanes maintained by tha Companay is as follows:

-- As at June 30, 2023 — -- As al June 30, 2022 — Rating
BANK Short-term Long-term  Shorl-lerm  Long-term agency
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AL Al+ AL PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AlAE Al+ A+ PACRA
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA Al+ AAA JCR-VIS
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA Al+ AAA PACRA
Mational Bank of Pakistan Al+ ARR At+ ARR PACREA
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AlF At+ Al PACREA
Habib Metro Bank Al+ AlF Abl+ Al+ PACREA
Cili Bank A+ A-1 A1 At Standard & Poor's
Bank Al Habib Limited AAA Ax Al+ AAA PACRA

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exisis when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggreqgate credit exposure is significant In refation to the Company's total credit exposure.
The Company's total sales are concentrated into one of the distributors which has exposed It to significant risk
dus to concentration of credit However payment pattern exhibits that the risk is maintained at the minimum laval,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk thal the Company may nol be able 1o setlle its financlal obligations in full as they all due or can
do so on terms that are matenally disadvantageous.

@
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Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficienl cash and bank balances and availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credil facilities. The Company aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines open.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabiliies into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the confractual
undiscounted cash flows:

2023 2022
Maturity  Maturity Maturity

upto one after one Total Maturiy-up after one Total
to one year
year year year
(Rupees "000) (Rupees '000) —————-
Shortderm loan from a related
party - unsecured 498,075 - 498,075 376.150 - 376,150
Trade and ather payables 555,797 - 555,797 530,407 - 530,407
Long-term finance - - - 24,661 - 24,861
Unclaimed dividend 1,765 - 1.765 1,589 - 1,589
Shortderm running finance - secured 451 183 - 451,183 06, 062 - 96,062
Mark-up accrued 22,802 - 22,802 1,223 - 1,223
Lease liability 3,003 9,610 12,613 1.071 4.282 5,353
1,532,625 9,610 1,542,235 1.031163 4,282 1,035,445

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

IFES 13 'Fair value Measurement' defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid
to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Underlying
the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a gaoing concern without any intention or
requirement to curtall materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.,

Az at June 30, 2023 the Company does not have any assets which are tradable in an open market. The
estimated falr values of all assets and liabilities are considered not to be significantly  different fram carrying
values as the items are either short-term in nature or are periodically repriced.

Fair value hierarchy

International Finrancial Reporting Standard 12, 'Fair Value Measuremant' requires the Company to classify assets
using a fair valua hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making the measurements, The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

- guoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities (level 1);

- input other than ouoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assel or liabilily, sither
directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs) (level

As at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, the Company did nol have any assels or liabllities which were measured
at fair values using any of the aforementioned valuation techniques.

@
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is (o safeguard fts ability lo conlinug as & going concermn
in order to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

In order lo maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjusl the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debis,

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as nel debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calcutated as total borrowings less bank balances,
Total capltal is calculated as equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.

2023 2022
—Rupeeas in "000---—

Total borrowings 957,318 500499
Less: bank balances (5,828) (53.211)
Met debt 951,490 447,288
Total equity 697,523 712,994
Total capital 1,649,013 1,160,282
Gearing ratio 57.70% 38.55%

As at June 30, 2023, the Company's gearing ratio has increased due to increase in running finance oblained to
meet working capital requirement. The Company's forgign loan liability Increased due to devaluation of currency.

As a part of the Company's future strategy, management has prepared a business plan which iz sensitive to
certain key assumptions. The Management believes that the successful implementation of the business plan
would help to improve the financial position of the Company,

PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

2023 2022

Particulars Actual . Actual
Capaci
Capacity production pecihy production

semmmmmemeememae== MilliaN bottles

1.V, solutions 28.6 215 314 220
Plastic ampoules 14.1 12.2 21.0 a8
Sachels 1.1 0.8 - -

The Company's annual capacity for |V solutions have been reduced from 31.4 million to 286 on account of
closure of LINE-Il operations for a pericd of 125 working days due to the installation of new alr washing, filling,
sedling and cap washing machine in line with Goods Manufacturing Process (GIMP) guidelines. The actual
praduction was on the lower side due to the burden of producing multiple range of products and frequent product
changeover in the markel

®
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45.2 The Company's annual capacity for Plastic Ampoules have been reduced from 21.0 million to 14.1 on account of
disposal of Blow Fill and Seal Machine (BFS) having an annual capacity of 7.05 miliion ampoules,

45.3 The Company has started the production facilily of Sachels with effect from Aprl 17, 2023. The actual
production was on the lower side due to the initial teething problems of the new production line.

48, SUBSEQUENT EVENT
The Board of Directors In fts meeting held on proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share (2022 Rs.
1.50 per sharg) amounting lo Rs. 18.15 million (2022: Rs. 18.15 million) subject to the approval of the members
in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

47. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue on Auvgust 24, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

48, GENERAL

48.1 Figures have been roundad off 1o the nearest thousand Rupees unless otherwise stated.

48.2 Corresponding  figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of
comparison, the effects of which are nat material.
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_,./1#’13"5’{‘ T Adzinire. liiohant b
Hanif Sattar Navin Merchant Sajid Ali Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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OTSUKA PAKISTAN LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholding Report
As of June 30, 2023
Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held Percentage
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children
MR, BAIEID BANDO 1 1 0.00
MR. SUHARI MUKTI i 1 0.00
MR, KOICHI OKADA 1 1 0.00
MR. HANIF SATTAR 1 121 0.00
MRS, NAVIN SALINM MERCHANT i 509 0.00
MR, MEHTABUDIN FEROZ 1 397,485 3.29
ABID HUSSAIN i 500 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 4 B,214,807 67.89
MNIT & ICP - - -
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Instii 3 8,621 0.07
Insurance Companies 2 111,802 0.92
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1 120 0.00
General Public
a. Local BB7 2,172,184 17.85
b, Foregn 8 14,456 0.12
Foreign Companies - - -
Others 17 1,179,392 g8.75
Totals 909 12,100,000 100.00
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
/S OTSUKA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED 5,420,247 44.80
M/5. OTSUKA PHARMACEUTICAL FACTORY, INC. 1,589,940 13.14
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As of June 30, 2023

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held
386 1 to 100 6,112
287 101 to 500 60,493
93 501 to 1000 68,454
98 1001 to 5000 204,824
19 5001 to 10000 127,924
10 10001 to 15000 118,363
1 20001 to 25000 24,090
1 30001 to 35000 30,112
1 45001 to 50000 49,000
1 50001 to 55000 51,474
1 110001 to 115000 111,562
) 130001 to 135000 134,000
1 145001 to 150000 146,510
1 200001 to 205000 202,372
5 395001 to 400000 1,987,425
il 560001 to 565000 562,599
1 1200001 to 1205000 1,204,499
1 1585001 to 1590000 1,589,940
1 5420001 to 5425000 5,420,247
910 12,100,000
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POSTAL BALLOT PAPER

for voting through post for the Special Businesses at the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 2, 2023
{Monday) at 10:30 a.m. at the Auditorium Hall, Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Chartered Accountants
Avenue, Clifton, Karachi
Website: www.otsuka.pk

Falio / CDS Account Mumber

Name of Shareholder / Proxy Holder
Registored Address

Number of sharas hald

CHNIC/Passport Mo. (in case of foreigner) (copy to ba attached )

s Ofsuka

Additional information and enclosures (in case of reprasentative of body corporate. corporation, and federal Govemment)
MName of Authorized Signatory
CNIC/Passport Mo, (in case of foreigner) of Authorized Signatory (copy to be attached)

Resolution For Agenda ltem MNo. 4:

To consider, adopt with or without modification the following reselution for approval of circulation of Company's annual audiled
accounts containing balance sheet, profit and less statement, auditors’ and directors’ reports ete, CAnnual Audited Financial
Statements®) 1o maember of the Company through OR enabled cods and web link as part of notices of Annual Ganeral Meeting.

"RESOLVED THAT providing of Company's annual audited financial statements fo its” members through OR enabled code and web
link be and is hereby approved”.

"“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized lo discontinue the circulation of annual financial
stataments through COIOVD."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things. take or cause
to be taken any action as may be necessary, incidental or consequential to give effect to this resclution.™

To consider and approve the incremental remunaration of Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Instructions For Poll
1. Please indicate your vote by ticking (V) the relevant box
2. In case if both the boxes are marked as (v), your poll shall be freated as “Rejected”.

liwe haraby exarcise my/our vote in respact of the above resolution through ballot by convaying my/our assent or dissent to the
rezolution by placing tick {) mark in the appropriate box below;

I'We assant to the I'We dissent to the

Banatifivn Resolution (FOR) | Resolution (AGAINST)

Resolution For Agenda ltem No. 4
Resolution For Agenda ltem No. 5

NOTES:

1,  Dully filled postal ballot showld he sent to the Chairman, Cisuka Pakistan Limited through post at Registered Office 30-B, Sindhi Muslim
Co-operative, Housing Society, Karaehi OR Email secretarialcomplianceiotsuka.ph.

2, Copy of CNICNICOT or Passport (in cage of foreign national) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form, Tn case of representative of
body corporale, corporntion and Federal Government, Board Reselution / Power of Attomey shall also be enclosed.

3. Postul balled forms should reach chamman of the mecting on or before October 01 2023, S:00 PM (List date of receiving pestad ballot), Any
postal baltor received nfter this date, will ot be considered for voting.

#,  Sipnature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNICNICOT,

[neomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mudilated, over writien ballot paper will be rejected

Date:

Shareholder ! Proxy holder Signature/Authorized Signatory
{In case of corporate entity, please affix company stamp)

Q@




PROXY FORM
35" Annual General
Meeting

The Secretary

Otsuka Pakistan Limited,
30-B 5.M.C H. Society, Please quote Folio No.
Off Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400,

O e sy s e RN T R T S S Y R S Being a member
of Otsuka Pakistan Limited here by appoint......e s e s s ias imsaan

as my/our proxy in myfour absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
Thirty-fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, October 2, 2023

and at any adjournent thereof.

Aswitness my handthis oo e dayoal e s, 2023
Signedbythesaid. ... ... ..

inthepresence of . Sighatire on
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Reavenue stamp of

appropriate value

Witness

(Signature should agree with
the SPECIMEN signalure
registered with the Company)

Motes:

1.

A member enlitied to altend and vole at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vole
instead of limfher.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of hisfher attorney
duly authorized in writing. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy, together with the Power of Attorney, if any under which it is signed or
a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited at the Registered Office not less than 48 hours
before the time of the meeting.

In case of Proxy for any individual beneficial owner of CDC, enfitled to attend and vote at this meeting, it
is necessary to deposit the attested copies of beneficial owner's national identity card, Account and
Participant’s ID numbers. The Proxy shall produce his original national identity card at the time of the
meeting, Representative of corporate members should bring the usual documents for such purpose.
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